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I I IAJ14 I L6pez-Vega,CPA,PSC 

Certified Public Accountants I Management Advisor!> 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Luquillo 
Luquillo, Puerto Rico 

Report on the Financial Statements 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

:\ lc·m h<'r of: 
• .\mi·rican Jn~tituk or 

C<'rtifird Public \ccount.ml'-
• Puerto lfo:o Sodl I) uf 

Cl'riifil•d Public \l countant~ 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Luquillo, Puerto Rico (the 
Municipality). as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Municipality' s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that arc free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arc free of material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Summary of Opinions 

Opinion Unit 

Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities 

General Fund 

Community Development Block Grant Program Fund 

Bonds and Notes Issuance Fund 

Law No. 2 I 2 Fund 

Debt Service Fund 

Municipal Enterprise Centro Diagn6stico y Tratamiento Fund 

Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities 

Type of Opinion 

Qualified 

Unmodified 

Unmodified 

Unmodified 

Unmodified 

Unmodified 

Unmodified 

Unmodified 

Unmodified 

As indicated in Notes A and N, the Municipality' s employees are provided with defined benefit pensions through 
cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plan administered by the Employees' Retirement System Administration of 
the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The deferred outflows/inflows of resources and the net 
pension liability of $1,338,060, $181,968 and $22,739,173. respectively, reported in the governmental activities of 
the government-wide Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2015, and the pension expense of $1 ,304,058 for the 
current period change of that liability in the governmental activities of the government-wide Statement of Activities, 
were derived from the amounts reported as the Municipality's proportionate share of the net pension liability, 
deferred outflows/inflows of resources and pension expense in the GASB 68 Col/ectil'e a11d Allocated A111011111s 
Schedule included in the Circular Leuer No. 1300-23-16 issued by the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury. This 
Schedule slates that the information disclosed as of June 30, 2014 (the pension plan's measurement dale) was not 
audited and subject to change. These amounts represent 100 percent, 52 percent, and 26 percent of the deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2015. respectively, and 8 percent of 
the expenses for the fiscal year then ended. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the 
proportional share used to determine the deferred outflows/inflows of resources, net pension liability and pension 
expense of the governmental activities. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to 
these amounts were necessary. 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the mauer discussed in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion on 
Governmental Activities" paragraph. the financial statements referred 10 above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the governmental activities of the Municipality of Luquillo, Puerto Rico, as of 
June 30, 2015, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Unmodified Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the Municipality of Luquillo, Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Req11ired S11pple111e11tary liifor111atio11 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion 
and Analysis on pages 9 through 22, Budgetary Comparison information on page 78, and the Schedules of 
Municipality's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and of Municipality's Contributions on page 81, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses lo our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other ltifor111atio11 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Municipality of Luquillo's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information -
Financial Data Schedule shown in pages 84 and 85 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Office of the Inspector General, and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information - Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards shown in page 87 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A- 133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and 
is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The Financial Dala Schedule and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards arc the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and rcla1e directly to the underlyi.ng accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accep1ed in the Uniled States of America. In our opinion, the Financial Data Schedules and the Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 31, 2016, on our 
consideration of the Municipality's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, conlracls, and grant agreements and other mailers. The purpose of that report 
is 10 describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not lo provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. Thal report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
Municipality's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

San Juan, Puerto Rico 
August 31, 2016 

Stamp No. 2728529 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of this report . 

I I IJJ1'4 I L6pez-Vega,CPA,PSC 

Ccrt1ficcl Public A(.·counlanl~ ' Managcmcnl Advisor!> 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

The discussion and analysis of the Municipality of Luquillo's ("the Municipality") linancial performance provides 
an overall review of the Municipality's linancial activities for the year ended June 30, 2015. The intent of this 
discussion and analysis is to look al the Municipality's financial performance as a whole; this section should be read 
in conjunction with the basic financial statements to obtain a better understanding of the financial position and the 
results of operations of the Municipality. Our analysis follows this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• On a government-wide basis, total assets and deferred outflows of the Municipality exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources at the close of fiscal year 2015 by $18,541,870 (net position). Of this amount, 
$(20,337,289) represents the unrestricted net deficit. This unrestricted deficit is the result of the implementation 
of GASB Stateme11t No. 68 "Acco1111ti11g and Fi11a11cial Reporting for Pensio11s-a11 a111e11d111e11t of GASB 
State111e111 No. 27" and GASB Stateme11t No. 71 "Pe11sio11 Tra11sitio11 for Co11trib111io11s Made S11bseq11e11t to the 
Meas11re111e11t Date". 

• With respect to 2015, the Municipality's governmental activities revenues and expenses increased 4% and 8% 
respectively. Business-type activities started operations during the fiscal year 2015. 

• A net change (decrease) in the fund balances of the Municipality's governmental funds of $181,750 in the fiscal 
year 2015 resulted in reported ending fund balances of $9, 197,625, with no significant change with respect to 
2014 year. Approximately 31 % of the total fund balances is unrestricted (commilled, assigned or unassigned). 

• For the fiscal year 2015, the General Fund reported an excess of revenues and other financing sources over 
expenditures and other financing uses of $814,552. The unassigned fund balance amounts to $2,209,265 with an 
increase of 12% as compared to 2014. 

• The investment in capital assets (total primary government) as of June 30, 2015 was $47,219,350 (net of 
depreciation). 

• Long-term debt increased to $41,302,241 as a result of the implementation of GASB Statements No. 68 and 71 . 
• On a budgetary basis, actual revenues exceeded actual expenditures by $242,410. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Municipality's financial report comprises four components: (I ) management's discussion and analysis 
(presented here), (2) basic financial statements. (3) required supplementary information and (4) other supplementary 
information: 

- MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
I 

BASIC FlNANCl'AL STATEMENTS I 
I 

Government Wide (full accrual) Fund 
Govemrrental activities Govemrrental (modified accrual) 
Business-lVoe activities Proorietarv (full accruall I 

I 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements I 

I 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

(other than Manaaerrent's Discussion and Analysis) 

I 
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

The Municipality's basic financial statements consist of two kinds of statements, the government-wide and the fund 
financial statements, as follows: 

Basic Financial Statements 

• Gover11me11t· Wide Fi11a11cial S1ateme11ts 

The government-wide statements report information about the Municipality as a whole using accounting 
methods similar to those used by private-sector businesses. They are prepared using the flow of economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The first government-wide statement - the 
statement of net position presents all of the reporting entity's non-fiduciary assets, deferred outflows, liabilities 
and deferred innows, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in the 
Municipality's net position arc an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other 
non-financial factors such as the condition of the Municipality's capital assets may need to be considered to 
assess the overall health of the Municipality. The second statement - the statemel/f of activities - presents 
information showing how the net position changed during the year. All of the current year' s revenues and 
expenses arc taken into account in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. The 
government-wide statements arc divided into two categories: 

Govemmemal Actil•ities: Most of the Municipality's basic services arc reported here including: public works 
and sanitation, public safety, culture and recreation, housing, welfare, and community development, education 
and general administration. These activities arc primarily financed through properly laxes, other local taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues. Included in the governmental activities are the governmental funds. 

Busi11ess-tme Activities: Business-type activities charge fees to customers to finance the costs of their activities. 
The activities of M1111icipa/ E11terprise Centro de Diagnostico y Trata111ie1110 (the only business-type activity) 
arc included here. 

• F1111d Filla11cial Staleme11ts 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Municipality's most significant 
funds. Funds arc accounting devices that the Municipality uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and 
spending for particular purposes. Some funds arc required by Federal and Commonwealth regulations, as well 
as by bond covenants. The Municipality has two kinds of funds: governmental and proprietary funds. 

Gol•emme111a/ Ot11ds: The Municipality's basic services arc included in governmental funds, which arc used to 
account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide 
statements. However, unlike the government-wide statements, the governmental funds arc prepared using the 
flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified-accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
approach, the financial statements focus on near-term inOows and outflows of external resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available al year-end. Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide 
a detailed short-term view that helps the reader determine whether there arc more or fewer financial resources 
that can be spent in the near future to finance the Municipality's programs. Because this information docs not 
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, additional information is 
provided on a subsequent page that explains the relationship (or differences) between the government-wide and 
fund sta1emen1s. 

Proprietao• funds: Services for which the Municipality charges customers a fee are generally reported as 
proprietary funds. These funds, like the govcrnmcnt·widc statements, provide both long-term and short-term 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

financial information and are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. The Municipality's proprietary funds consist of an enterprise fund, the same as the 
business-type activities. The Municipality reports the activities of Municipal Enterprise Centro de Diagnostico 
y Tratamiento as an enterprise fund. 

The fund statements focus on major funds. The Municipality's major governmental and enterprise funds arc 
funds that comply with a minimum criterion that is, a percentage of the assets and deferred outflows; liabilities 
and deferred inflows; revenues or expenditures or based on the Municipality's official's crileria if the fund is 
particularly important to financial statement users. Funds that do not comply with this crilerion arc grouped and 
presented in a single column as other governmental funds or other nonmajor enterprise funds. 

• Notes to ji11a11cial statements 

The basic financial statements also include notes lo explain information in the financial stalements and provide 
more detailed data. 

Required supplementary information: The statements and notes are followed by the required supplementary 
information that contains the budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund, the schedule of Municipality's 
proportionalc share of net pension liability and the schedule of Municipality's contributions. 

Supplementary information: The supplementary information also includes a financial data schedule containing 
financial information of the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program administered by the Municipality. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Position: The following table presents a summary of the Statements of Net Position as of June 30, 2015 and 
2014: 

TABLE 1 

Gmunmcntul Acthitics Business-type Aclhitics Total Primury Gtm:rnmcnt 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 
~ 
Cuncn1 and other assets s 13,934,652 s 14,970.573 s I03.533 s . s 14,038,185 s 14,970,573 
Tola] capital asscls. net 47.219.350 47,082,807 . . 47.219.350 47.082,807 

Totul usscl~ 61,154.002 62,053.380 I03.533 . 61.257.535 62,053.380 

Dcfencd ou1nows ofn:sourccs l.338,(J60 . . . 1.338.060 . 

lJulrilitics 
Cum:nl and other liabilities 2,038,2!0 2,485.717 . 2.038,2IO 2.485,717 
Long-lerm liabilities: 41.302.241 19.()(X;.02 I . 41.302.241 19,()(X;,021 

Totul liubi Ii tics 43.340,451 22,091,738 . . 43.340,451 22.091.738 

Deferred innows of resources 713.274 536,938 . - 713.274 536.938 

Net position 
Net investm:nt in capital asscls 33,472,946 32,628,575 - - 33,472,946 32.628.575 
Restricled 5,406.213 5,096,375 . - 5,406,213 5,096,37~ 

Unrestricted (20.440.822) 1.425.224 IOJ,533 - (20.337.289) 1.425,224 
Total net pisition s 18,438.337 s 39,150.174 s 103.533 s - s 18.541.870 s 39.150.174 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

The Municipality implemented GASB Statement No. 68 effective July I, 2014. The 2014 amounts presented have 
not been restated to reflect the implementation of GASB Statements 68 and 71. 

Over time, net position (difference of non.fiduciary assets, deferred outflows versus liabilities and deferred inflows) 
may serve as a useful indicator of a government' s financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the 
Municipality's net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. At June 30, 
2015, assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows by $18,541,870. Of this amount, 
$(20,337,289) represents unrestricted net position, which may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations 
to citizens and creditors. This unrestricted dclicit is the part of net position that can be used to finance day·to·day 
governmental operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation or other legal 
requirements. This deficit primarily arises from the implementation of GASB Statements 68 and 71. In order lo 
implement the Statements, a prior period adjustment was made to the Municipality' s July I, 2014 net position. This 
prior period adjustment and other miscellaneous adjustments decreased the net position at beginning of year by 
$21 ,115,464 from $39,424,704 to $18,309,240. Restricted net position represents resources that arc subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. 

The largest portion of the Municipality's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (land, buildings, 
equipment, and infrastructure) less accumulated depreciation and less any related outstanding debt used lo acquire 
those assets. The Municipality uses these assets to provide services to its citizens and, consequently, these assets arc 
not available for f uturc spending. The resources needed to repay the debt related to these capital assets must be 
provided from other sources because capital assets arc not generally liquidated for the purpose of retiring debt. 

Changes in net position 

The following table summarizes the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended 2015 and 2014: 

TABLE2 

Qnernmcntal Acthities Business·l~ Acthitics Total Primary Gmernment , 
2015 

, 
2014 

, 
2015 

, 
2014 

, 
2015 

, 
2014 

Program re,enues: 

Fees, fines and charges for 
services s 1,2Q.J,936 s 2,187,842 s 36,317 s s 1,241,253 s 2,187,842 

Operating grants and contributions 2,956,867 1,885,908 2,956,867 1,885,908 
Capital grants and contributions 496,268 1,128,587 496,268 1,128,587 

General menues: 
Propeny taxes 3,881,262 4,089,947 3,881,262 4,089,947 
Municipal license taxes 847,246 902,491 847,246 902,491 
Sales and use taxes 1,639,039 1,440,949 1,639,039 1,440,949 
frants and contributions not 
restricted to specific program; 4,939,317 4,148,384 4,939,317 4,148,384 

Interest and other 1,090,481 598,471 1.090.481 598,471 
Total re\enues 17,055,416 16,382,579 36,317 17,001,733 16,382,579 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

TABLE 2- Continued 

Gmcrnmentnl Acthities Business-nw Acthilies , 
2015 

, 
2014 

. 
2015 • 2014 

fapenses: 
G.:neral govemlll!nt 7,652.150 6.971 ,792 + . 
Public works and sanitation 3,471,707 3,615,573 . . 
Public safety 296,916 286.215 . . 
Qilture and recreation 784.808 882,254 . . 
Health 200.00I 341,684 403J21 . 
Housing. welfare and conmmity 

dcvcloplll!nl 3,275.018 2.637,816 . . 
Education 20,241 5.580 . . 
Interest on long-tcnndcbt 694.938 736.429 . . 

Totnl expenses 16.455,782 15,477,343 403.321 . 

Increase (decrease) in net ~iticm 
before trwfers 599,634 905,1'6 l)67.00I) . 

TrllRSfers (470.537) . 470.537 

Change in net p1Sition 129,097 905.236 103,533 -
Net position at beginning of year. 

as previously reponed 39.150,174 38.244.938 - -
Prior pcriod adjust1TCnts (20.840,934) . . -
Net position at beginning of year, 

as restated 18J09.240 38.244.938 . . 
Net p1Sition ol end of year s 18,438J37 s 39,150,174 s I03.533 s . 

Totnl Primary Gmunment 
• 2015 • 2014 

7.652.150 6.971.792 
3.471,707 3,615.573 

296,916 286.215 
784.808 882,254 
663,.m 341.684 

3,275,0l8 2,6.17,816 
20,241 5,580 

694.938 736,429 
16,859.103 15.477.343 

2.12.630 905,2.16 

. . 

m,6JO 905,2.16 

39,150,174 38,244,938 
(20,840,934) -

18J09.240 38.244.938 
s 18,541.870 s 39.150,174 

The Municipality implemented GASB Statement No. 68 effective July I, 2014. The 2014 amounts presented have 
not been restated to renect the implementation of GASB Statements 68 and 71. 

The Municipality (total primary government) reported a positive change in net position of $232,630 a decrease of 
($672,606) or 74% with respect to the net change in net position reported in fiscal period 2014. This decrease 
resulted from the net effect of an increase of 4% in revenues and a net increase of 8% in expenses. The following 
FIGURE 1 illustrates the Municipality's revenues comparison between 2015 and 2014: 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

FIGURE 1 

Municipality of Luquillo 
Governmental Activities· 'Revenues by Source 

Fiscal Years Ended•June 30, 2015 and•2014 

• 2015 

2014 

Revenues, governmental activities - As shown in TABLE 2, the three major sources of revenues of the 
Governmental Activities of the Municipality in fiscal year 2015 arc: unrestricted granls and con1ribu1ions (29%), 
properly taxes (23%) and operating grants (I 7% ). Revenues reported a net increase of 4% with respect lo prior year. 
The most significant revenue variances occurred in: 

• Other revenues increase (137%) - the increase is due to the recognition in 2015 of the donation of lhe 
health center from the Puerto Rico Department of Health for a total amount of $700,000. On these facilities 
is located and operating lhe Municipal Enterprise Centro de Diagn6stico y Tratamiento, a blended 
enterprise fund. 

• Operating grants increase (57%)- the Municipality recorded an increase of $767,828 in 21th Century grant 
funds as compared with 2014. 

• Capital grants decrease (56%) - due to a decrease in Commonwealth Legislature Resolutions revenues 
during 2015. 

• Fees, fines and charges for services decrease (45%) - decrease occurred mainly due to a reduction in the 
compensalion in lieu of tax ("CELI") from PREPA reported in 2015. The compensation in lieu of tax 
("CELI") reported as government-wide revenue of $1,008,057 represents an estimated amount since 
PREPA has not reported to the Municipality the actual CELI to be reported for the fiscal year 2014-2015. 
For the 2014 ycar, lhe actual CELI reported as government-wide revenue amounted to $1,790,389. 
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Revenues, business-type activities - revenues of business-type activity of M1111icipal Enterprise Centro de 
Diag116s1ico y Tratamielllo consists mainly of charges for services - contract fees from a private medical provider 
and an operating grant from the Municipality. The Municipal Enterprise started operations in October 2014. 

Expenses, governmental activities - The Municipality's government-wide expenses cover a range of services. The 
largest expenses arc general government with 46%, public works and sanitation with 21 % and housing, welfare and 
community development with 20%, as illustrated in FIGURE 2: 
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Total expenses of governmental activities increased 8% when compared with fiscal year 2014. Major increases 
occurred in general government (15%) and housing, welfare and community development (24%) functions. 

The increase in general government is the net effect of several variances, the most significant increases in employer 
contributions to the retirement plan of $643,948 due to the implementation in 2015 of GASB Statement 68; accrual 
of claims and judgments of $288,000; salary of irregular employees of $508,000; increase in other expenses of 
$118,000; a net of a decrease of $112,853 in vacation expense and $782,000 in electric power utility expense 
consistent wilh the reduclion of the CELI as disclosed before. The increase in housing, welfare and community 
developmenl expense is due to an increase of $650, I 05 in the 21 lh Century grant consistent with the related increase 
in this grant's revenues. 

Expenses, business-type activities - expenses of business-type activity of Municipal Enterprise Centro de 
Diag116stico y Tratamiellfo consists of professional services (grant of fonds transfer to medical provider) and other 
operational expenses. The Municipal Enterprise started operalions in October 2014. 

The Statement of Activities reports revenues and expenses in a formal &hat focus on the net cost of each funclion of 
the Municipalily. Both the gross and net cost of the function, which is otherwise being supported by the general 
government revenues, is compared to the revenues generated directly by the function. This S1atemcnt reduces gross 
direct expenses, including deprecialion, by related program revenues, operaling and capital grants, and 
conlributions. The following TABLE 3 discloses 2015 and 2014 governmenlal activities expenses net of program 
revenue and &he general revenues available to linancc remaining costs: 

TABLE3 

Net Cost of M1111icipality 's Go11er11me11tal Activities 
For tlic years c11ded J1111c 30, 

Net Costs ofScniccs 
r 

2015 
r 

2014 

Gcn"Crnmental ucthities: 
G:ncmt govemtrenl $ (6.152.447) $ (4,749,091) 
Public works and sanitalion (2.850,439) (2.486,986) 
Public surely (296,916) (223.156) 
Cullurc and recreation (762,688) (882.254) 
Health (260,004) (341.684) 
Housing, welfare and convnunily 

devclopircnl (760,038) (849,826) 
E.ducalion (20,241) (5.580) 
Interest on long· tcrm dcbl (694.938) (736.429) 

Total expenses, net ofprogrum 
re\1!nues (11 ,797.711) (I 0,275.006) 

Genernl re\1!nues: 
Taxes 6.367,547 6.433.387 
Grants and conlributions nol 
restricled to specific programs 4,939,317 4,148,384 

lnlercsl and other 1.090.481 598,471 
Transfers (470.537) . 

Total genernl re\t:nucs 11,926,808 11.180,242 

ChDnge in net position $ 129.007 $ 905.236 
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The Municipality implemented GASB Statement No. 68 effective July l, 2014. The 2014 amounts presented have 
not been restated to renect the implementation of GASB Statements 68 and 71. 

Some of the cost of governmental activities was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs (fees and 
charges for services) ($1,204,936) and other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with 
capital and operating grants ($3,453,135). The net cost of services ($11,797,711) was fully covered by other general 
revenues. 

Expenses of the business-type activity were fully covered by charges for services and transfers of funds from the 
Municipality. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S FUNDS 

Governmental funds - The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
innows, outflows and balances of resources available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the 
Municipality's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
Municipality's net resources available at the end of a fiscal year as they represent the portion of fund balance which 
has not yet been limited to use for a particular purpose by an external party. 

For the liscal year ended June 30, 2015, the governmental funds reported ending fund balances of $9, 197,625, a net 
increase of $181,750 in comparison with the prior year. Of the total fund balances, $2,816, 199 (or 31 % ) constitutes 
unrestricted fund balance, of which $896,905 (or 10%) is unassigned funds. The remainder of the fund balances is 
restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending. Following is a summary of the financial analysis of the 
Municipality's major funds: 

• Ge11eral F1111d ·The general fund is the operating fund of the Municipality. The fund balance of the general 
fund of $4, 128,559 represents approximately 45% of total ending fund balances. Of the total fund balance, 
46% is assigned for public works, public safety, culture and recreation, welfare, capital outlays, and general 
government purposes. The remainder of $2,209,265 is unassigned fund balance, which represents 54% of 
the total fund balance. This unassigned fund balance increased 12% with respect to the prior year. 

During the liscal year, the net change fund balance of the general fund amounts to $814,552, a net decrease 
of 57% when compared with the 2014 net change in fund balance, as restated. The Municipality suffered a 
decrease in general fund operational revenues of $737, 114 or 7%; expenditures increased by $370, J 27 of 
3%. The decrease in revenues was mainly caused by the following: 

a) Properly laxes decrease ( 17%) • the Municipality reported less current year "non-exonerated" property 
taxes with respect to the prior fiscal year and less revenue for a property tax amnesty applicable to 
2014. 

b) Fees, fines and charges for services decrease (15%) - due to a reduction in revenues from construction 
excise tax and in the compensation in lieu of tax ("CELI") from PREPA reported in 2015 as indicated 
earlier. The compensation in lieu of tax ("CELI") reported as revenue represents an estimated amount 
since PREPA has not reported to the Municipality the actual CELI to be reported in fiscal year 2014-
2015. 

These decreases were counterbalanced by other financing sources of $1,862,819 representing transfers 
from the CAE and IVU Municipal Redemption Funds for funds in excess of debt service requirements, 
interest income generated in other funds and transfers from other governmental funds. 
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• Comnumity Developme11t Block Gra11t Program F1111d (''CDBG") • The CDBG Fund is composed of the 
CDBG "State's Program and Non-Entitlement Grants", received through the Office of Commissioner of 
Federal Affairs. There were no significant variances in fund's revenues and expenditures with respect to 
2014. With respect to previous year, the COBO fund operation presents an increase in revenues of $86,684 
and an increase in expenditures of $9,602. The most significant expenditures include improvements for 
streets and roads, assistance to the elderly and administrative costs. Fund balance presents a deficit as 
liabilities and deferred innows of resources exceed assets for unavailable revenues recorded. 

• Bo11ds a11d Notes Jss11a11ce F1111d • This fund reports financial resources from bond proceeds and notes 
issuances which arc restricted for acquisition or construction of capital assets. No new debt was issued 
during 2015 as access to markets and the participation of the Municipality in the bond market has been 
delayed waiting for the credit rating of the Commonwealth and its instrumentalities to improve or for more 
favorable market conditions. There were no significant expenditures during 2015. 

• La111 No. 212 Frmd • The Law No. 212 fund reports revenue sources and the expenditures for the 
construction of the Rosendo Matienzo Public Square. The project was financed with funds received through 
the 212 State Law of 20 I t to be received through the Puerto Rico Department of Transportation ("DTOP"). 
Project was financed through loans from the general fund. Management believes the amount due from 
DTOP collectible and is still making collection efforts. 

• Debt Service F1111d ·The debt service fund accounts for the resources of two individual funds including the 
"Fondo I 0 - CAE Redemption Fund" (a special surtax redemption fund established by the CRIM with 
GOB which accounts for the 2% of property taxes collected by the CRIM and the IVU Municipal 
Redemption Fund (.2% of the .5% from sales and use taxes deposited in the Municipal Administration fund 
of GOB to finance loans to Municipalities). There were no significant variances in revenues and 
expenditures with respect to 2014. The Fund reported other financing uses of $1,563,457 representing 
transfers of funds to the general fund for (I) excess funds of CRIM Property Taxes Fund (CAE) for 
$401,607 and (2) excess funds of IVU Municipal Redemption Fund for $I , 161,850. As a result, the fund 
balance decreased from $2,977,865 in 2014 to $2,206,919. This excess of funds may be transferred to the 
Municipality's general fund as authorized by Municipal regulations. 

Proprietary funds • The Municipality's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide statements but in more detail. The net position of M1111icipal Enterprise Ce111ro de Diag116stico y 
Tratamiento ("ME CDT") at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $I 03,533. Revenues of the ME CDT consist 
mainly of charges for services - contract fees paid to a private medical provider and an operating grant transferred 
from the Municipality. Expenses consist of professional services (grant of funds transferred lo medical provider) and 
other operational expenses. ME CDT reported a positive change in net position of $103,533 in the statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position. The Municipal Enterprise started operations in October 2014. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The Municipal budget is prepared for the General Fund following the requirements of the Autonomous Municipal 
Law of 1991 , as amended. In order to demonstrate compliance with budget regulations and accounting standards, the 
Municipality presents a budgetary comparison schedule of the general fund as required supplementary information. 
This schedule is prepared under a budgetary basis of accounting, which is different from accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP"). Revenues arc generally recorded when cash is 
received and expenditures are generally recorded when the related expenditure is incurred or encumbered. The 
general fund original budget for the fiscal year 2014-2015 presented an increase of $159,711 or 2% with respect to 
the prior year original budget. Budget revisions during 2015 amounted to $735,578 for a total revised budget of 
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$10,086,462. Actual revenues exceeded revised budgeted revenues by $159,220 (net). The Municipality also 
reported a positive variance or $83, 190 between revised budgeted appropriations and actual expenditures. Actual 
revenues exceeded actual expenditures by $242,410. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital assets, governmentnl activities: At the end or the liscal year, the Municipality has invested $47,219,350 
(net or accumulated depreciation) in a broad range of capital assets, including buildings, parks, roads, bridges, land, 
furniture, works of art and equipment. This amount represents a net increase of $136,543 over the prior year. The 
following TABLE 4 discloses the capital assets balances as of June 30, 2015 and 2014: 

TABLE4 

Capital Assets, net 
As of J1111e JO, 

Governmental Acthitics 
~ 2015 .. 2014 

Nondepreciable assets: 

Land $ 10,462,413 $ 10,462,413 

Construction in progress 1,337,372 3,786,710 

Depreciable assets (net): 

Buildings and buildings improvements 23,732,586 21 ,013,619 

Infrastructure 7,356,653 7,360,868 

Infrastructure improvements 3,278,793 3,286,849 

Equipment 333,441 341,903 

Furniture 36,649 9,414 

Works of Art 654 654 

Computers 183,383 73,451 

Vehicles 497,406 746,926 

Total: $ 47,219,350 $ 47,082,807 

The Municipality's major capital projects that were still in construction and the related cost as or June 30, 2015 arc 
as follows : 

• "Rcmodelacion Centro de Arte y Cultura" with $836, 144 costs incurred as of year-end. Project is currently 
financed through the general fund and $2,785,000 special obligation bond. 

• "Parque Recreativo Barrio Sabana" with $148,215 costs incurred as of year-end. Project is currently financed 
through the general fund and Commonwealth Legislature Resolutions. 

During the fiscal year 2014-2015 the Municipality: 

• Completed and transrerrcd various projects to building improvements including: "Facilidades Deportivas Brisas 
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del Mar" amounting $1,960,758 and "Cancha Juan Marlin" amounting $475,216. 

• Received as a donation the facilities of the diagnostic and treatment center located in Luquillo from the Puerto 
Rico Department of Health through Commonwealth's Legislature Resolution Number 87 of August 11, 2014. 
The facilities estimated cost amounted to $700,000. 

• Completed infrastructure projects for a total amount of $567,454. 

Capital assets, business-type activities: The M1111icipal E11terprise Celltro de Diag116stico y Tratamiento operates 
in facilities owned by the Municipality, in exchange of a$ I rent. As discussed earlier, the Municipality received as a 
donation the facilities of the diagnostic and treatment center from the Puerto Rico Department of Health. 
Equipment, furniture and a vehicle used in the facilities arc also property of lhe Municipality. 

More detailed information about the Municipality's capital assets is presented in Note E 10 the linancial statements. 

Long-term debt 

Governmental activities· Long-term debt of governmental activities increased 111 % to $41,302,241 with respect 
to 2014. This significant change primarily arises from the implementation ofGASB Stateme11t No. 68 "Acco1111ti11g 
a11d Financial Reporting for Pe11sions-a11 ame11dme11t of GASB Stateme11t No. 27" and GASB Staleme11t Nt1. 71 
"Pension Transition for Co11trib11tio11s Made S11bseq11e11t to rite Measure111e11t Dare". The Municipality, as a cost­
sharing employer, reported its proportionate share of the pension plan's resulting net pension liability from 
Statement No. 67 based on their respective individual proportion to the collective net pension liability of all the 
governments participating. No new debt was issued during 2015 as access to markets and the participation of the 
Municipality in the bond market has been delayed wailing for the credit rating of the Commonwealth and its 
instrumentalities to improve or for more favorable market conditions. The following TABLE 5 is a summary of the 
Municipality's outstanding debt as of June 30, 2015 and 2014: 

TABLES 

011tsta11ditlg Lo11g·lenn debt 
Fiscal years e11ded J1111e 30, 

Gon~mmentul Activities .. 2015 .. 2014 

General and special obligation bonds 

and notes $ 16,001 ,000 $ 16.838,000 

Payable to CRIM : 

Law No. 42 450,061 464,029 

Financing of delinquent accounts 155,589 164,740 

Property till( advances 33,785 -
Compensated absences 1,205,790 1,280,691 

Christmas bonus payable 143,780 141,876 

Payable To PREP A 285,063 716,685 

Judgments and claims 288,000 -
Net pension liability 22,739, 173 -

Total: $ 41,302,241 $ 19,606,021 
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The Municipality implemented GASB Statement No. 68 effective July I, 2014. The 2014 amounts presented have 
not been restated to rcnccl the implementation of GASB Stalemcnts 68 and 71 . 

Business-type activities - the The Municipal Enterprise Centro de Diag116stico y Trata111ie11to have no long-term 
debt outstanding as of June 30, 2015. 

More detailed information about the Municipality's long-term liabililics is presented in Note F of the financial 
statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its ins1rumen1alities arc currently facing a severe fiscal and liquidity crisis. 
Credit rating agencies have been downgrading it rating on the Commonwealth debt obligations based on, among 
other problems, years of deficit financing, pension underfunding, budgetary imbalance and a prolonged economic 
recession. These downgrades may have a significant impact in the economic environment of Puerto Rico and the 
Commonwealth Government, its instrumentalities and the municipalities in critical areas such as access lo markets 
and liquidity for the current fiscal year and thereafter. Therefore, the participation of the Municipality in the bond 
market has been delayed waiting for the credit rating of the Commonwealth and its instrumentalities lo improve or 
for more favorable market conditions. 

On April 6, 2016 the Commonwealth approved Act 21-2016 known as the Puerto Rico Emergency Moratorium a11d 
Financial Rehabilitation Act ("Act No. 21 " ) (as amended) to declare a moratorium on debt service payments and to 
stay related creditor remedies for a temporary period for the Commonwealth and certain of its instrumentalities. On 
April 8, 2016 the Commonwealth's Governor signed Executive Order No. 2016-010 ("EO No. 2016-010") declaring 
the Bank in state of emergency pursuant to Act No. 21. EO No. 2016-010 implemented a regulatory framework 
governing GOB 's operations and liquidity by prohibiting loan disbursements by GOB and establishing a procedure 
with respect to withdrawals, payments and transfer requests with respect of funds held on deposits at GOB by the 
Commonwealth and its instrumentalities, including the Municipalities. The withdrawal, payment and transfer of 
funds held on deposit at GOB arc restricted to those reasonable and necessary to ensure the provision of essential 
services and the GOB is authorized to establish weekly limits on the aggregate amount of such disbursements. 

The Municipality is a participating employer in a retirement plan administered by the Employee's Retirement 
System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS). The ERS is a mature retirement system 
with a significant retiree population. Based on the statutory funding requirements, the annual benclit payments and 
administrative expenses paid by ERS were significantly larger that the member's and employers' contributions to 
the ERS. This matter, among other factors, caused the ERS lo have liquidity and solvency problems. The 
Commonwealth approved Act No. 3 of 2013 and Act No. 32 of 2013 which amend the provisions of the different 
benefits structures under the ERS and established increasing and additional contributions to the ERS including: 

• All participants arc required to contribute 10% of gross salary. 

• The Municipality contributed 13.275% of gross salary for fiscal year 2014-2015 with an additional 1% for 
the next fiscal year and 1.25% annually for each of the five years lhercafter, reaching an aggregate 
contribution rate of 20.525% effective July I, 2020. 

• The Municipality is subject lo an Addilional Uniform Conlribulion ("AUC"). The ERS will determine the 
amount of AUC to be billed and paid by each employer during each fiscal year. 

• Special laws and pensioner additional benefits are funded on a pay-as·you~go basis and billed by ERS to 
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the Municipality at the beginning of each fiscal year. The invoice includes a supplemental contribution of 
$2,000 per pensioner to finance the Additional Benefits Program. 

These additional contributions have an incremental and significant effect on pension related costs to the 
Municipality, which will be financed with general fund resources. 

If these increasing contributions are not paid in full on an annual basis by the Commonwealth, its instrumentalities 
and the Municipalities, the ERS will continue to become rapidly defunded and gross assets will be exhausted which 
will cause the ERS to become insolvent by the fiscal year 2018. This situation will cause ERS to operate as a pay-as­
you-go basis, which means that it would be unable to pay benefits in excess of contributions, unless the 
Commonwealth and the Municipalities provides the necessary funding. 

The Municipality's officials considered certain factors when establishing the fiscal year's 2014-2015 budget. One of 
these factors is the economy. Among economic areas considered arc the estimates for the growth or decline in 
population, personal income, housing statistics and unemployment rates. The Municipality's unemployment rate at 
June 2015 stands at 15.8%, and the Commonwealth rate stands at 12.8%. 

For the year 2015-2016, the Municipality applied a conservative approach in the development of budget estimates. 
Amount available for appropriations in the General Fund arc $9,349,625 with approximately no variance respect to 
prior year estimates. Budgeted expenditures arc expected to rise according to the increase of budgeted revenues. If 
these estimates arc realized, the Municipality's budgetary general fund balance is expected to increase modestly by 
the close of the 2015-2016 fiscal year. In addition to the general fund estimated budget, the Municipality plans to 
submit to the Federal and Commonwealth government fund proposals for welfare and community development as 
well as permanent capital improvements and public works. 

CONTACTING THE MUNICIPALITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial rcpon is designed lo provide our citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general overview of the 
Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
any questions about this report or need any additional information contact the Finance Department at the 
Municipality of Luquillo at P .0. Box IO 12, Luquillo, Puerto Rico 00773. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2015 

Prima!:l Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities 
Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,004.513 $ 61.548 
Cash with fiscal agent 3.472.251 
Receivables. net: 

Municipal license taxes 2.429 
Others 345.322 41,985 

Due from: 
Commonwealth Government 949.319 
Federal Government 649,895 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,616,019 
Cash with fiscal agent 5,869,131 

Other assets 25,773 
Capital assets: 

Land and construction in progress 11,799,785 
Other capital assets, net 35.419.565 

Total capital assets, net 47.219.350 
Total assets 61.154.002 103.533 

Dcrerred outnows or resources 
Deferred outflows related to pensions 1.338.060 

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,338,060 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,370,307 
Interest payable 347,796 
Due to: 

Commonwealth Government 84,397 
Unearned revenues: 

Intergovernmental-Federal grants 235,710 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year 1,680,202 
Due in more than one year 39.622.039 

Total liabilities 43.340.451 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Municipal License taxes received in advance 531,306 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 181.968 

Total deferred inflows of resources 713.274 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 33.472,946 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 3,243,298 
Capital Projects 1,650,516 
Other specified purposes 512,399 

Unrestricted (20,440,822) 103.533 
Total net position $ 18.438.337 $ 103.533 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Total 

$ 1.066,061 
3.472.251 

2.429 
387,307 

949,319 
649,895 

1,616,019 
5,869,131 

25.773 

11.799,785 
35.419,565 
47.219.350 
61.257.535 

1.338,060 
1.338.060 

1.370.307 
347,796 

84.397 

2.15.710 

1,680,202 
39.622.039 
43.340.451 

531.306 
181.968 
713.274 

33.472.946 

3,243,298 
1,650,516 

512.399 
(20.337.289) 

$ 18.541.870 



Functionsll'rogrums 
Governmental activities: 

Governmen1al Activities: 
General government 
Public works and sanitation 
Public sarcty 
Culture and recreation 
Health 
Housing. welfare and community development 
Education 
Interest on long-tenn dcht 

Towl governmentul Dc:livities 

Busincss-lype udivilies: 
M.E. Centro de Diagnostico y Tralamienlo 

Total business-type activities 

Totul primary government 

Expenses 

s 7.652.150 
3,471,707 

296,916 
784,808 
260,004 

3.275,018 
20.241 

694,938 
s 16.455.782 

403,321 
403,321 

s 16.859.103 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 
ST A TEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Progrum Revenue.'i 
Fees, Flnes and Operuting Cup ital 

Cha rges ror Grunts und Grunts und 
services Contribulions Contributions 

s 1,204.936 s 294,767 s -
- 125,000 496,268 

. -
- 22.120 . 
. . -
- 2.514,980 . 

- -. -
s 1.204.936 s 2.956.867 $ 496.268 

36.317 . . 
36.317 . -

s 1.241.253 s 2.956.867 s 496.268 

General revenues : 
Taxes~ 

Property laxes 
Municipal license taxes 
Sales and use laxes 

Grants contrihutions not restricted to specific programs 
ln1cres1 
Other 
Transfers 

Total general revenues: 

Change in net position 
Ncl position Ill beginning or ycur, llS resluted 
Net position ut end or yeur 

The uccompanylng notes ure an integral part or thi.~ statement. 

Net (Exl!enses ) Revenues and Chan&es in Nel Position 
Primu!I Govemment 

G11vemmcntnl Business-type 
Aclivilies Activities T11tnl 

s (6, 152,447) s s ( 6 .152,447 ) 
(2.850,439) - (2,850,439) 

(296,9 16) . (296,916) 
(762,688) . (762,688) 
(260,004) . (260.004) 
(760,038) - (760,038) 

(20,241) - (20,241) 
(694,938) . (694.938) 

( 11.797,7 11) . (11.797,71 1) 

. (367,004) (367.004) 

. (367.004) (367,004) 

111,797,7 1 l) (367,004) (12,164,71 5) 

3,881,262 - 3,88 1,262 
847,246 . 847,246 

1.639,039 - 1.639,039 
4,939 ,317 - 4,939,3 17 

191 .719 - 191 ,719 
898,762 898,762 

(470.537) 470.537 
11 ,926,808 470.537 12,397,345 

129,097 103,533 232,630 
111.309.240 111.309,240 

s 18.438.337 s 103.533 s 18.541.870 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

HALANCESHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

.JUNE 30, 2015 

Mujor Funds 

Community 

Development Rondsund Other Totul 
Block Grunt Notes Luw Dehl Govemmcntul Govemmentul 

Generul Progrum Issuance No. 212 Service Funds Funds 
As.<;el<; 

Cash and cash equivalents s 1,004,5 13 s - s - s - s - s - s l,004.513 

Cash with fiscal agent J,472,25 1 - - - - - 3,472.251 
Receivables, net: 

License taxes 3.432 - - - - - 3,432 
Other - - - 338,319 - 6,000 344,319 

Due from: 
Commonwealth Government 354.456 . - - 314,067 280,796 949,319 

Federal Government . 182,949 - - - 466,946 649,895 

Other funds 786,495 . . - - 4.500 790,995 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents . 644 . - - 1.615.375 1,616,019 

Cash with fiscal agent - . 2.568,994 - 3,277,027 23. 110 5,869,131 

Other assets 25.773 . . - - . 25,773 

Totul 11s.<;el<; s 5.646.920 s 183.593 s 2.568.994 s 338.319 s 3.591.094 s 2.396.727 s 14.725.647 

The accompanying notes arc an inlcl:lral part of this stalcmcnt. 25 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

HALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

.JUNE 30, 2015 

MujorFunds 

Community 

Development Uondsand Other Total 
Block Grunt Notes Luw Deht Governmental Governmental 

General Program Issuance No. 212 Service Funds Funds 
Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabthlles s 548.202 s 146,810 s 194,121 s :\.319 s - s 477.855 s 1.370.307 
Matun..'<I bonds and interest payable - . . - 1,197,467 - 1.197.467 
Due to: 

Commonwealth Government 84.397 - . - - - 84,397 
Other funds - 36,504 . 334.999 419,49::! 790,995 

Unearned revenues: 
Intergovernmental - Fc.'tleral grants . - - - - 235,709 235.709 

Totul li11hilities 632.599 183,314 194,121 338.318 1,197.467 1,133.056 3,678,875 

Deferred innows or rcsourcL'S 

Municipal License taxes received in advance 531 .306 . - - . - 531.306 
Unavailable revenues: 

Propcny taxes - . - - 158,354 . 158.354 
Sales and use taxes 33,448 . - - 28,354 . 61.802 
Commonwealth Government 321,008 . - 338,319 238,641 897,968 
Fc.'dcra\ grants - 16',851 . - . 37,866 199.717 

Total dererred innows of resources 885,762 161,851 - 338.319 186,708 276,507 1,849,147 

Fund balances (ddicit.<1) 
Restricted - - 2.374.873 - 2,206.919 1.799,634 6,381.426 
Assigned 1.919.294 - - - - - 1,919,294 
Unassigned 2.209,265 (16\,572) - (338,318) - (812.470) 896,905 

Total rund balances (deficit) 4,128.559 (161,572) 2.374.873 (338,318) 2,206.919 987.164 9,197,625 

Total liabilities, dererred inRows of resources 

and fund balances (deficit) s 5,646,920 s 183.593 s 2.568,994 s 338_119 s 3,591,094 s 2.396,727 s 14,725.647 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part or this statement. 26 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2015 

Totul Cund hulunces • governmcntul fonds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position arc 
different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities arc not current financial resources and, 
therefore, arc not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet 
governmental funds balance sheet 

Other assets arc nol available to pay current-period expenditures and, therefore, arc 
reported as deferred in nows of resources in the funds: 

Due from Commonwealth Government: 
Christmas bonus reimbursement 
Property laxes· Debt Service Fund 
Sales and use taxes· Debt Service Fund 
Sales and use taxes- General Fund 
P.R. Department of Labor· Law No. 52 
P.R. Electric Power Authority (PREPA) 
P.R. Department of Transportation and Public Works (DTOP) 
Other 

Due from Federal Government: 
Federal grant • CDBG 
Federal grant • 21 St. Century 

Deferred out nows of resources related to pensions not recognized in the governmental 
funds' balance sheet: 

Interest liabilities arc not due and payable in the current period and therefore. arc not 
reported in the funds 

Long-term liabilities. including bonds payable. arc not due and payable in the current 
period and, therefore, arc nol reported in the funds: 

General obligation bonds and notes 
CRIM property lax liquidation's liability 
Note payable to CRIM-Law No. 146 
Note payable lo CRIM-Law No. 42 
Net pension liability 
Compensated absences 
Christmas bonus 
Judgments and claims debt 
Debt payable to PREPA 

Deferred in nows of resources related to pensions not recognized in the governmental 
funds balance sheet: 

Net position or governmentnl activities: 

The uccompunying notes ure un integral part or these stutements. 

$ 35.945 
158.354 
28,354 

33.448 

232.641 
285.063 
338.319 

6.000 

161 .851 
37.866 

(15.151.000) 
(33.785) 

( 155.589) 
(450.061) 

(22,739,173) 
( l .205.790) 

(143.780) 
(288,000) 
(285.063) 

$ 9,197,625 

47.219.350 

1.118,124 

199.717 

1.338,060 

(330) 

(40,452,241) 

(181,968) 

$ 18,438,337 
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Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 
Municipal license taxes 
Sales and use taxes 

I ntergovemmental; 
Commonwealth Government 
Fcdernl Government 

Fees, fines and charges for services 
Interest 
Other 

Totul revenues 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND HALANCES (DEFICIT) -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

General 

$ 2,516,216 
847,246 
640,552 

4.401,827 

1,636.558 
29,052 

120,844 
10,192,295 

Community 
Development 
Block Grunt 
Pro~rum 

s 

629.256 

629,256 

Mujor Funds 

Bonds and 
Notes 

Issuance 

s 

160,202 

160,202 

Luw 
No.212 

s 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this statement. 

Dehl 
Service 

$ 1.405.478 

936,685 

2.431 

2,344.594 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$. -

1,353.410 
2,141,638 

34 
28,399 

3.523.481 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 3,921,694 
847,246 

1.577,237 

5,755,237 
2,770,894 
1,636.558 

191,719 
149,243 

16,849,828 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND HALANCES (DEFICIT)· 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Major Funds 
Community 
Development Hoods 11nd 
Hlock Grunt Notes Law Dehl 

General Program lssu11nce No. 212 Service 
Ex pcnditures: 
Current: 
General government 6,687,057 - - - -
Public works ancl sanitation 2.521.875 . 8.487 . -
Public Safety 206,794 - . . -
Culture and recreation 276,724 . 1.849 . -
Health 161.939 - . - -
Welfare ancl community development 750.018 227,601 - - -
Education - . - - -

Capital outlays 521.155 229,074 20.7'5 - -
Debt Service: 

Principal . . - . 857.000 
Interest . - - . 695.083 

Total expenditures 11.125.562 456,675 31.0S I - 1.552,083 

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over expenditures (933.267) 172.581 129.151 . 792,511 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 1,862,819 - - - -
Transfers (out) (115.000) - (160,202) - ( 1.563.457} 

Total other financing resources (uses) 1,747.819 - (160,202) - ( 1.563.457} 

Net change in rund balances (deficit) 814.552 172.581 (31.051) - (770,946) 
Fund balances (deficit) at heginni ng or ye11r, us res la led 3.314.007 (334.153) 2.405,924 (338J 18) 2.977,865 

Fund balances (deficit) uc end or yeur $ 4,128,559 $ (161.572) $ 2.374,873 $ 038.318) $ 2.206.919 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this statement 

Other Total 
Governmental Governmental 

Funds Funds 

183.413 6,870,470 
273,309 2,803,671 

20 206,814 
18,661 297,234 

- 161 ,939 
2,023,930 3.001,549 

20 20 
532.817 1.303,761 

- 857,000 

- 695,083 
3.032,170 16,197,541 

491,311 652,287 

- 1.862,819 
(494,697) (2.333,356) 
(494.697) (470,537) 

{3.386) 181.750 
990,550 9,015,875 -

$ 987.164 $ 9.197.625 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCES (DEFICIT) OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Net change in rund bulunces (deficit)· totul governmentul runds: 

Amounts rcponcd for governmental activities in !he S!atcmcnt of Activities arc different because: 

Governmental funds rcpons capital assets outlays as expenditures. However. in the Statcmcm 
of Activities, the cost of those assets is alloca1cd over !heir es1ima1cd useful Jives and 
reported as dcprecialion e:itpense: 

Expendilurcs for capilal assels 

Less: current year depreciation 

Governmental funds only rcporl the proceeds received in lhe disposal of assets. In !he 
S1atcmcnt of Ac1ivi1ics, a gain or loss is rcponed for each disposal. Thus, ihe change in 
nee position differs from the change in fund balance by !he cost of the disposed asset: 

Revenues in the Stalcmcnl of Ac1ivi1ics !hat do no! provide currcnl financial resources arc 
nol rcponcd as revenues in the funds: 

Christmas bonus reimbursement 
Properly la:itcs· Debt Service Fund 
Sales and use taxes- General Fund 
Sales and use ta:itcs- Debt Service Fund 
P.R. Dcpanment of Labor· Law No. 52 
Federal grant • CDBG 
Federal grant • 21 St. Century 
Donated assets 

Revenues reponcd in funds which arc not reponcd as revenues in the Statement of Activities: 
Christmas bonus reimbursement 
Properly taxes-General Fund 
P.R. Electric Power Authority (PREPA) 
P.R. Dcparlmcnt of Labor· Law No. 52 
Federal grant - CDBG 

Expenditures reponed in funds which arc not rcponed as e:itpenses in the Statement of 
Activities: 

Matured bonds principal payments (net change) 
Municipali1y's contribu1ions to the pension plan in current year 

Rcpaymcnl of long lcnn debt is an e:itpendilure in the govcrnmcnlal funds, but reduces Jong­
lcnn liabilities in !he Statement of Net Position: 

General obligation bonds and notes 
Other long tcnn liabilities 

Some expenses reponcd in the S1a1emcnt of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and lhcrcfore are not rcporled as e:itpenditurcs in the govcrnmenlal 
funds: 

Compensated absences 
CRIM propcny tax liquidation's liability 
Christmas Bonus 
Judgments and Claims 
Pension 

$ 1,303,761 
(I . 707 ,082) 

35,945 
158,354 
33,448 
28.355 

127.039 
65.913 
37,866 

700.000 

70.938 
165.001 
431,622 

91,289 
238,214 

20,000 
561.911 

837.000 
672.725 

( 1,207) 
(33,785) 

( 143,780) 
(288,000) 

( 1,304,058) 

$ 181,750 

(403,nt) 

(160,136) 

1,186,920 

(997,064) 

581,911 

1.509,725 

Accrued interest (net change) ____ 14_2_ (1,770,688) 

Chunge in net position or governmenlul activities: $ 129,097 

The accompanying notes are an inlegral pan of these statements. 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND 
JUNE 30, 2015 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash 
Accounts receivable 

Total current assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and net position 

Net position 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total net position 

Business-type 
Activities -

Enterprise Fund 
Municipal 

Enterprise Centro 
Diagnostico y 
Tratamiento 

$ 

$ 

61,548 
41,985 

103,533 

103,5'.B 

103,533 
103.533 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this statement. 3l 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUJLLO 

ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET 
POSITION· 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Operating revenues 
Fees and charges for services 
Other 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Professional services 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other 
Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Transfers from other funds 

Change in net position 

Net position at beginning of year 

Net position at end of year 

Business-type 
Activities • 

Enterprise Fund 
Municipal 
Enterprise 

Centro 
Diagnostico y 

$ 35,919 
398 

36,317 

399,644 
3,616 

61 
403,321 

(367,004) 

470,537 

103,533 

$ 103.533 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS· 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Cash nows from operating activities: 
Cash received from fees and charges for services 
Other cash receipts 
Professional services 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other cash disbursements 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash nows from noncapital financing 
activities: 
Transfers from other funds for operating subsidies 
Loan received from the Municipality 
Loan repayment lo the Municipality 

Net cash provided by noncapital and financing activities 

Net increase in cash 

Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by (used in) operating activities 

Operating Income 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net position to net 
cash provided by operating activities: 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts receivable 

Total Adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Business-type 
Activities • 

Enterprise Fund 
Municipal 

Enterprise Centro 
Diagnostico y 
Tratamiento 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,916 
398 

(408,626) 
(3,616) 

(61) 
(408,989) 

470,537 
180,000 

( 180,000) 
470,537 

61,548 

61 .548 

103,533 

(41,985) 

(41,985) 

61 .548 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this statement. 33 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Municipality of Luquillo was founded in 1797. The Municipality is governed by the executive and the 
legislative branch elected for a four-year lerm during lhc general elections in Puerto Rico. The Mayor is the 
executive officer and the legislative branch consists of fourteen (14) members of the Municipal Legislature. The 
Municipality engages in comprehensive range of services lo the community such as: general government 
administration, public works, health, environmental control, education, public security. welfare, housing, community 
development and culture and recreation activities. 

The financial statements of the Municipality have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United Slates as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial rcportin8. The GASB periodically 
updates its existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which, along with subsequent 
GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. 

1. Fillallcial reporti11g elltity 

The financial reporting entity included in this report consists of the financial statements of the Municipality of 
Luquillo (the primary government) and component units. A primary government is any state government or general 
purpose local government (a municipality). All funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices 
that arc not legally separate arc, for financial reporting purposes, part of a primary government. If an organization is 
part of a primary government, its financial data should be included with the financial dala of the primary 
government. Component units arc legally separate organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable or organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government 
arc such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements 10 be misleading or incomplete. A 
component unit may be a governmental organization, a nonprofit corporation or a for-profit corporation. 

The following circumstances set forth a primary government's financial accountability for a legally separate 
organization: 

a. The primary government appoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body, and either: 

• A financial benefit/ burden exists between the primary government and the entity or 
• The primary government can impose its will on the entity. 

b. The entity is fiscally dependent on the primary government and there is a financial benefit/burden between the 
primary government and the entily. 

In addition, as described above, it would be necessary to include other organizations as a component unil if the 
exclusion would cause the primary government's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Organizations 
that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and that meet all of the following criteria should be discretely presented 
as component units: 

a. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct 
benefit of the primary government, its component units, or its constituents. 

b. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority 
of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization. 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

NOTE A • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

c. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific primary government, or 
its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability lo otherwise access, are significant to the primary 
government. 

Professional judgment should be applied in determining whether the relationship between a primary government and 
other organizations for which the primary government is not financially accountable and that do not meet the above 
criteria is such that exclusion of the organization would render the financial statements of the reporting entity 
misleading or incomplete. 

There arc two methods of presentation of the component unit in the financial statements: (a) blending the financial 
data of the component units' balances and transactions and (b) discrete presentation of the component unit's 
financial data. When a component unit functions as an integral part of the primary government, its data is blended 
with those of the primary government ("blended co111po11e11t 1111its"). Thal is, the component unit's funds arc treated 
just as though they were funds of the primary government with one exception: the general fund. Component units 
should be reported as blended if meets any of the following criteria: 

a. The component unit's governing body is substantively the same as the governing body of the primary 
government and there is either: 

• A financial benefil/ burden between the primary government and the entity or 
• Management of the primary government has operational responsibility for the primary government. 

b. The component unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the primary government or otherwise 
exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits the primary government. 

c. The component unit's debt is expected to be paid by the primary government. 

Otherwise, the component unit should be presented as discrete. Those component units do not function as an integral 
part of the primary government and its data is presented discretely (separately) from the data of the primary 
government ("discretely co111po11e111 1111its"). As discussed earlier, other legally separate, tax-exempt organizations 
that meet the applicable criteria should be included as discretely co111po11e11t units. 

Based on the above criteria the following component unit, while legally separate from the Municipality, meets the 
blending criteria to be reported as part of the primary government financial statements: 

M1111icipal E11terpritre "Ce11tro de Diagm)stico y Tratamie11to" ("ME CDT") - The ME CDT is a for-profit legally 
separated corporation organized pursuant Article 2.004 (u) of the Autonomous Municipalities Act No. 81 of 199 I as 
amended. It was created as a Municipal Enterprise through the Municipal Legislature Ordinance No. 5 Series 2013-
2014 lo provide health services to the general public. As required by law, it is governed by a Board of Directors 
composed of live (5) members (all Municipal officer's members of the executive branch) appointed by the Mayor 
(except for the Finance Director whose membership is compulsory). The Municipality appoints a voting majority of 
the ME CDT's board of directors, has the ability lo impose its will on the organization and provides significant 
financial support to finance its operating expenses. ME CDT started operations in October 2014 and signed a 
collaborative agreement with the Municipality of Luquillo to administer and operate the facilities of the diagnostic 
and treatment center owned by the Municipality, in exchange of a $1 rent. Following that date, ME CDT sub­
contracted with a private medical provider the administration and operation of the ME CDT's emergency room and 
the provision of other medical services lo the general public. The provider will pay back to the ME CDT 30% of 
amount collected on medical services rendered by the provider. The ME CDT's financial statements are blended into 

3S 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

the Municipality's financial statements as an enterprise fund since (I) the governing body of ME CDT 1s in 

substance the same of the Municipality and (2) the significant financial support the Municipality provides to ME 
CDT to finance its operating expenses. 

The ME CDT issued separate compiled financial statements as of and for the nine months ended June 30, 2015 
which can be obtained directly by contacting it administrative office at P.O. Box 1012 Luquillo, P.R. 00773. 

2. Basis of presentation, measurement focus and basis of accounting 

The financial report of the Municipality consists of the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), basic 
financial statements and required supplementary information other than the MD&A. Following is a summary 
presentation of each, including the measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus is a term used to 
describe whic/1 transactions arc recorded within the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to w'1e11 
transactions arc recorded regardless of the measurement focus: 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

This consists of a narrative that introduces the basic financial statements and provides and analytical overview of the 
Municipality's financial activities. This analysis is similar to analysis the private sector provides in their annual 
reports. 

Basic financial statements 

Basic financial statements include both government-wide and fund financial statements. Both levels of statements 
categorize primary activities as governmental type, which arc primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues. 

Government-wide statements 

The government-wide statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities. These 
statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus, which refers to the reporting of all of 
the net position available to the governmental unit for the purpose of providing goods and services to the public. 
The statements are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues arc recognized in the period earned and 
expenses recognized in the period in which the associated liability is incurred. Fiduciary activities, if any, whose 
resources arc not available to finance government programs, arc excluded from the government-wide statements. 
The effect of inter-fund activities is eliminated. 

The Statement of Net Position presents all of the reporting entity's non· fiduciary assets, deferred outnows, 
liabilities and deferred innows, with the difference reported as net position. The Statement of Activities reports 
revenues and expenses in a format that focus on the net cost of each function of the Municipality. Both the gross 
and net cost of the function, which is otherwise being supported by the general government revenues, is compared 
to the revenues generated directly by the function. This Statement reduces gross direct expenses, including 
depreciation, by related program revenues, operating and capital grants, and contributions. Direct expenses are 
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. As a policy, indirect expenses arc not allocated in the 
Statement of Activities. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

The types of transactions included as program revenues arc: charges for services, fees, licenses and permits; 
operating grants which include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants; and capital 
grants which arc capital-specific grants. Internally dedicated resources arc reported as general revenues rather than 
as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. Property taxes arc considered imposed non­
cxchangc transactions since arc based on assessments imposed by the Municipality thal arc not based on exchange 
transactions. Property taxes arc recognized as revenues in the year for which the taxes arc levied. Municipal 
license taxes and sales and use laxes arc considered derived lax revenues since they arc taxes imposed by the 
Municipality based on exchange lransactions. Municipal license taxes arc recorded as revenues in the period the 
Municipality has an enforceable legal claim and time requirements arc met; sales and use taxes arc recognized as 
revenues in the period when the underlying exchange has occurred. Revenues on both operating and capital grants 
arc recognized when all eligibility requirements (including time requirements) imposed by the provider have been 
met. For certain expenditure-driven grants, revenue is recognized after allowable expenditures arc incurred. 

The Municipality reports a deferred inflow of resources for unearned revenues in the government-wide statements. 
Unearned revenues arise when (I) resources received in advance of an exchange transaction, (2) resources 
received in advance in relation to a derived tax revenue, and (3) resources received in advance related to voluntary 
non-exchange transactions when eligibility requirements other than time requirements have not been met (in case 
of certain federal expenditure-driven grants if resources arc received before allowable expenditures arc incurred). 
In subsequent periods, after related exchange transactions occur or applicable eligibility requirements arc met, the 
deferred inflow of resources for unearned revenues is removed from the statement of net position and the revenue 
is recognized. 

Governmental Fund Statements 

The financial transactions of the Municipality arc recorded in individual funds, each of which is considered an 
independent fiscal entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprise its assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, fund equity, revenues and expenditures. Funds 
arc segregated according to their intended purpose which helps management in demonstrating compliance with 
legal, financial and contractual provisions. Governmental Funds arc those through which most governmental 
functions of the Municipality are financed. The governmental fund statements include a Balance Sheet and a 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances with one column for the general fund, one 
for each major fund and one column combining all non-major governmental funds. Major funds arc determined 
based on a minimum criterion, that is, a percentage of the assets and deferred outflows; liabilities and deferred 
inflows; revenues or expenditures or based on the Municipality's official's criteria if the fund is particularly 
important to financial statement users. The Municipality reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund: This is the operating fund of the Municipality and is used to account for and report all financial 
resources not accounted for and reported in another fund. 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Fund: CDBG fund is used lo account for and report 
revenue sources for the development of viable urban communities by providing decent housing, a suitable living 
environment and expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate income. CDBG 
funds arc received through the Office of Commissioner of Municipal Affairs ("OCAM"), a Commonwealth's 
governmental agency. 

Bonds and Notes Issuance Fund: This fund is used to account for and report financial resources from bond 
proceeds and notes issuances which arc restricted for acquisition or construction of capital assets. This fund 
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reports transactions of individual funds of Bonds and Notes issued through GOB. 

Law No. 212 Fund: This fund is used 10 account for and report revenue sources and the expenditures for the 
construction of the Rosendo Matienzo Public Square. The project was financed with funds received through the 
212 S1a1c Law of201 l. 

Debt Service Fund: this fund is used 10 account for and report financial resources lhal arc rcslricled, committed, 
or assigned to expenditures for the payment of principal and interest of the Municipality's general and aspccial 
obligation bonds and notes. This fund accounts for the resources of three individual funds including "Fondo 10 -
CAE Redemption Fund" (a special surtax redemption fund established by the CRIM wilh GOB which accounts 
for the 2% of properly laxes collected by lhe CRIM) and the IVU Municipal Redemption Fund (.2% of the .5% 
from sales and use taxes deposited in lhe Municipal Administration fund of GOB lo finance loans lo 
Municipalities). 

The Municipality also reports nonmajor governmental funds in a single column, which includes the following: 

Special Revenue Funds: this fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specilic revenue sources that 
arc restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The 
core revenue source of the fund must represent a substantial portion of the fund's lotal inflows. The limitation on 
spending (specific purpose) may be imposed by external parties (creditors, granlors, contributors, other 
governments), by constitutional provisions, by enabling legislation or by action taken by the government's own 
highest level of decision-making authority. 

Capital Project Funds: this fund is used lo account for and report financial resources that arc restricted, 
committed or assigned lo expenditures for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital 
facilities and other capital projects. Typically, the fund is not used for routine or minor capital outlays (equipment, 
vehicles, furniture, among others) which arc reported inslcad in lhe fund from which financial resources were 
expended. Rather, the fund is used primarily for major projccls and acquisitions financed with borrowed or 
contributed resources. The use of a capital project fund frequently is required by debt covenants, grant contracts, 
law or regulation. 

The governmental fund financial statements arc accounted for using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified-accrual basis of accounting. Under lhis method of accounting, revenues arc recognized 
when they arc susceptible to accrual (i.e. both measurable and available). Revenues arc considered lo be available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the Municipality considers revenues to be available if they arc collected within 60 days 
of the end of the current fiscal period. 

Revenues susceptible lo accrual include property taxes, recognized as revenues in the year for which the laxes arc 
levied; municipal license taxes, recognized in the period the Municipality has an enforceable legal claim and time 
requirements arc met; and sales and use taxes, recognized when the underlying exchange has occurred, and 
interest. In applying the susceptible 10 accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, revenues are recognized 
when all eligibility requirements (including time requirements) imposed by 1he provider have been met and 
revenue becomes available. There arc, however, essentially two types of these revenues. In the first case, on 
expenditure-driven grants, monies must be expended on the specific project or purpose (eligibility requirement), 
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before any amounts arc paid to the Municipality. Revenue is, therefore, recognized as expenditures arc incurred to 
the extent available. In the other cases, monies arc virtually unrestricted and arc generally revocable only for 
failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. In these cases, revenues arc recognized as the time of 
receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria is mcl. Licenses and permits, charges for services, rent, fines 
and miscellaneous revenues arc generally recorded as revenues when received or arc recognized earlier if the 
susceptible to accrual criteria is met. 

The Municipality reports a deferred innow of resources for unearned revenues in the governmental funds 
statements. Unearned revenues arise when (I) resources received in advance of an exchange transaction, (2) 
resources received in advance in relation to a derived tax revenue, and (3) resources received in advance related to 
voluntary non-exchange transactions when eligibility requirements other than time requirements have not been 
met (in case of certain federal expenditure-driven grants if resources arc received before allowable expenditures 
arc incurred). In subsequent periods, after related exchange transactions occur or applicable eligibility 
requirements arc met, the deferred inflow of resources for unearned revenues is removed from the balance sheet 
and the revenue is recognized. 

Expenditures arc generally recognized when the related liability is incurred as under accrual basis of accounting. 
Certain exceptions to this fundamental concept include the following: (I) payments of principal and interest on 
general long-term debt, which arc recorded as expenditures when due, except for principal and interest due on July 
I (in this case amounts arc recorded as liabilities and expenditures on June 30 since amounts have been 
accumulated or transferred to the debt service fund before July I payments arc made) and (2) vested compensated 
absences, claims and judgments and special termination benefits which arc recorded as expenditures only to the 
extent that they arc expected to be liquidated with expendable financial resources (in the government-wide 
statements, the expense and related accrual liability for long-term portions of debt must be included). 

Since the governmental fund statements arc presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting 
than the government-wide statements, a reconciliation is necessary to explain the adjustments needed to transform 
the fund financial statements into the government-wide statements. This reconciliation is part of the financial 
statements. 

Proprietary Funds Statements 

The proprietary fund financial statements arc accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as the business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Under 
this method of accounting, revenues arc recorded when earned, independently when arc collected, and expenses 
arc recorded when incurred, independently when arc paid. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and 
expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
proprietary funds arc charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for the funds include the cost of 
operations and maintenance and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition arc reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

The proprietary fund statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Net Position (with one for each major enterprise fund and one column combining all non-major 
enterprise funds) and a Statement of Cash Flows. 

The Municipality's proprietary funds consist of one enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to account for 
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that the cost of providing goods and services be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. Major 
enterprise funds arc determined based on a minimum criterion, that is, a percentage of the assets, liabilities, 
revenues or expenses or based on the Municipality's official's criteria if the fund is particularly important to 
financial statement users. The Municipality reports the following major enterprise fund: 

Municipal Enterprise "Centro de Diagnostico y Tratamicnto" Fund: This fund, a blended component unit, is 
used lo account for the activities of the Municipal Enterprise "Centro de Diag116stico y Tratamiemo" ("ME 
CDT"). ME CDT was created as a Municipal Enterprise to provide health services to the general public. The 
organization finances its operations through a 30% commission fee from a medical services provider and through 
financial support from the Municipality of Luquillo. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The notes to financial statements provide information that is essential to a user's understanding of the basic 
financial statements. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Required supplementary information consists of the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund, the 
Schedule of Municipality's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and the Schedule of Municipality's 
Contributions, as required by GASB. 

3. Deposits a11d i1westme11ts 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original 
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposits with original 
maturity of more than three months arc considered time deposits as required by current standards. The Municipality 
follows the practice of pooling cash of all funds except for certain Commonwealth's grants, restricted funds 
generally held by outside custodians and federal grants. Available pooled cash balance beyond immediate needs is 
invested in certificates of deposits. Cash and cash equivalents related to Commonwealth and Federal grants 
(including Commonwealth Legislature Resolutions) arc restricted since their use is limited by applicable agreements 
or required by law. The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico authorize the Municipality to 
invest only in obligations of the Commonwealth, obligations of the United States of America, certificates of 
deposits, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, or in pools of obligations of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, 
which arc managed by the Governmental Development Bank for Puerto Rico ("GOB"). 

4. Restricted a.'lsets 

Restricted assets arc liquid assets which have third-party limitations on their use. Cash and cash equivalents related 
to Commonwealth and Federal grants (including Commonwealth Legislature Resolutions) arc restricted since their 
use is limited by applicable agreements or required by law. Restricted cash with liscal agent in the debt service fund 
consists of the undisburscd balance of property and sales and use tax collections retained by the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico, which arc restricted for the repayment of the Municipality's general and special obligation bonds and 
notes as established by law. Restricted cash with fiscal agent of the Bonds and Noles Issuance Fund represent the 
undisbursed proceeds of certain bonds, loans or grants which arc maintained in a cash custodian account by the 
GDB. Restricted cash with fiscal agent of the Other Governmental Funds represent the undisbursed proceeds of 
grants which are maintained in a cash custodian account by the GOB or a federal government agency. 
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5. Receivables a11d due from govemmental entities 

Receivables arc staled net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which arc determined upon past 
collection experience and current economic conditions. Amounts due from federal government represent amounts 
owed lo the Municipality for the reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant lo federally funded programs. 
Amounts reported in the debt service fund represent property and sales tax revenues of current fiscal year collected 
by the CRIM - (CAE Redemption Fund) and GDB - (IVU Municipal Redemption Fund) on the subsequent fiscal 
year. 

6. lnterftmd tra11sactiom 

The Municipality reports inter-fund transactions as follows : 

Inter-fund loans: 

Inter-fund transfers: 

Inter-fund 
reimbursements: 

7. /11ve11tories 

Represent legally advances that arc representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
from one fund to other fund to finance payroll, payroll taxes and other expenditures. 
The current portion of such transactions arc referred as to either "due from/10 other 
funds" and the noncurrenl portion as "advances lo/from olher funds". Amounts not 
expected to be collected within a reasonable period of time arc reduced 10 the 
estimated realizable value and amounts not expected lo be repaid arc reported as 
"transfer-out" from the lender fund and "transfer-in" in the borrower fund. 
Represent legally nows of assets without equivalent nows of assets in return and 
without a requirement for repayment. These arc reported as "transfers-out" (other 
financing uses) in the fund that issue the transfers and as "transfers-in" (other 
financing sources) in the fund receiving the transfers. 

Represent repayment from a fund responsible for particular expenditures or expenses 
to the fund that initially finances them. 

The Municipality purchases gasoline, oil and other expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost of those 
purchases is recorded as expenditure when incurred in the appropriate fund but the year-end inventory is not 
recorded in the statement of net position, as management believes is not significant 

8. Capital assets 

Capital assets reported in the governmental activities in the Statements of Net Position include property, plant, 
equipment and infrastructure, (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items). The Municipality defines capital 
assets (except for infrastructure assets) as assets that have an individual cost of $500 or more and have a useful life 
of one or more years. Infrastructure assets arc capitalized based on a percentage of the estimated useful life. The cost 
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add lo the value of the assets or materially extend assets lives arc not 
capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects arc constructed. 

Capital assets arc capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not available. Donated 
assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. All capital assets, 
other than land and construction in progress, are depreciated using the straight· line method over the following useful 
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Description 
Buildings and building improvements 
Infrastructure and infrastructure improvements 
Equipment 
Furniture and Fixtures 
Work of Art 
Vehicles 

Ycgrs 
40 
40 

3 to5 
5 
10 
5 

In accordance with current accounting standards, capital assets arc reviewed for impairment. Impairment occurs 
when there is a significant decline in asset service utility due to the occurrence of a prominent event or change in 
circumstances affecting the asset. Current standards provide guidance for accounting and reporting for impairment 
and for insurance recoveries. 

9. Long-term obligations 

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations, which arc reported as liabilities in the governmental act1vtt1es 
column in the statement of net position, consist of general and special obligation bonds, liabilities for compensated 
absences, claims and judgments, net pension liability and long-term liabilities to other governmental entities. 
Related bond issuance costs, whenever rise, arc reported as current outflows of resources in the Statement of 
Activities, as required by current standards. Governmental fund types recognize bond issuance costs as expenditures 
during the current period. Those issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, arc 
reported as expenditures in the appropriate fund. 

JO. Compensated absences 

The Municipality's employees accumulate vacation, sick leave and compensatory time based on continuous service. 
Compensated absences arc recorded as a liability if (I) arc earned on the basis of services already performed by 
employees, (2) it is probable that will be paid (in the form of paid time off, cash payments at termination or 
retirement, or some other means) and (3) arc not contingent on a specific event (such as illness). The compensated 
absences arc accumulated on the basis of 2'12 days per month of vacation and 1112 days per month of sick pay and 
compensatory time up to a maximum of 60 days of vacations and 90 days of sick leave. Upon separation from 
employment, the accumulated vacations are liquidated up to the maximum number of days. Accumulated sick leave, 
which is accrued based on all vesting amounts for which payment is probable, is liquidated to employees with IO 
years or more service up to the maximum number of days. 

The accrual of compensated absences includes estimated payments that arc related to payroll. The entire 
compensated absence liability is reported in the government-wide financial statements. A current portion is 
recognized representing the estimated amount to be used in the following year. For governmental fund financial 
statements, the currenl portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amounl that is normally expected to be paid 
using expendable available financial resources. The non-current portion of the liability is not reported. 

Pursuant to Law No. 152 of August 20, 1996, effective July I, 1997, the Municipality is required to pay any excess 
of vacations and sick leave accumulated over 90 days as of December 31 of each year. Payments should be made on 
or before March 31 of the following year. 
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1 J. J11dgme11ts a11d claims 

The liability and expense amounts for judgments and claims arc recorded in the government-wide statements as 
incurred or when a loss is probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Amounts arc recorded as liabilities 
and expenditures in the general fund when they mature (generally, when payment is due). 

12. Accormtitrg for pe11sio11 costs 

The Municipal employees arc covered by the retirement plans administered by the Employee's Retirement System 
of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS). For purposes of measuring the net pension 
liability, deferred outOows of resources related to pensions, deferred inOows of resources related lo pensions and 
pension expense, information about the pension plan's liduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the 
plan's liduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they arc reported by the plan. For this 
purpose, plan member contributions arc recognized in the period in which the contributions arc due. The 
Municipality's employer contributions arc recognized when due and when the Municipality has a legal requirement 
to provide the contributions. Bcnelits and refunds arc recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
terms of plan. Investments arc reported al fair value. In the governmental funds linancial statements, pension 
expense is equal to the statutorily required contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required 
contri bu ti ons. 

13. Deferred 011lflows I i11flo111s of resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outOows of 
resources. This separate linancial statement clement, deferred outOows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future pcriod(s) and so will not be recognized as an outOow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inOows of resources. This separate linancial statement clement, deferred inOows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future pcriod(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inOow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

In the statement of net position, deferred outflows I inOows of resources arise as a result of the following: 

a. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 "Acco1111ti11g a11d Fi11a11cial Reporting for Pe11sio11s-a11 
ame11dmefll of GASB State111e111 No. 27" a11d GASB Statement No. 71 "Pe11sio11 Tra11sitio11 for Co11trib111io11s 
Made S11bseq11e111 to tire Measurement Date - an ame11d111e11t of GASB Statement No. 68" 

b. Municipal license taxes ("patentcs en suspcnso") and voluntary non exchange transactions (grants) received in 
advance before time requirements arc met are recorded as deferred inOows of resources. The deferred inOows of 
resources arc recognized as inflows of resources (revenues) in the period when time requirements are met. 

In the governmental funds, balance sheet deferred inflows of resources arise as a result of the following: 

a. Recognition of 1111m•ai/able revenue as a result of the application of the modilied-accrual basis of accounting. 
The governmental funds report 1111m•ai/able re1•e1we from three sources: property taxes, sales and use taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues collected or to be collected after the availability period. These amounts arc 
recognized as an inOow of resources (revenue) in the period that the amounts become available. 
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b. Municipal license laxes ("palenles en suspenso") and volunlary non exchange 1ransac1ions (granls) received in 
advance before lime requirements arc met are recorded as dcrcrrcd in nows or resources. The deferred innows of 
resources arc recognized as inflows of resources (revenues) in lhe period when time requirements arc met. 

14. Net positio11 

In the government-wide statements, assels plus deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources equal net position, and should be displayed in three components: net investment in capilal assets, 
restricted, and unrestricted, as follows: 

Net investment in capital 
assets: 

Restricted net position: 

Unrestricted net position: 

Consists of capilal assets, net of accumulalcd depreciation, reduced by the 
outslanding balances of bonds, notes, or other borrowings that arc auribulablc lo 
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources that arc attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt also 
should be included in this component of net position. The porlion of the debt or 
deferred inflows of resources attributable to the unspent debt proceeds is not 
included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Instead, the portion 
of the debt or deferred inflows or resources is included in the same net position 
component (restriclcd or unrestricted) as lhe unspent amount. 

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets (subject to 
rcstriclions beyond the Municipality's conlrol) reduced by liabilities and deferred 
inflows or resources relaled to those assets. Generally, a liabilily relates to 
rcstric1cd assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also results in the 
recognition or a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted 
assets reported. Restrictions arc cxlernally imposed (by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments) or imposed by the law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position is the net amount or the asscls, deferred outnows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that arc not included in the 
determination or net investment in capital asscls or the rcstricled component of net 
position. Unrestricted net position is often dcsignalcd lo indicate lhal management 
docs not consider them to be available for general opcralions. These types of 
constraints arc internal and management can remove or modify them. 

JS. Net positio11jlo111 assumptio11 

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (restricted bond or grant 
proceeds) and unreslricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position and 
unrestricted - net position in the government-wide financial stalemcnts, a flow assumption must be made about the 
order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government's policy to consider restricted - net 
position lo have been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied. 
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16. Fund bala11ces 

The GASB Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting a11d Govem111e111al F1111d Type Dejinitio11s ("GASB No. 54") 
establishes accounting and reporting standards for all governments that report governmental funds. It also 
csiablishcs criteria for classifying fund balances into spccilically dclincd classifications and clarifies dclinitions for 
governmental fund types. These classilications comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the 
Municipality is bound to observe constraints upon the use of the resources reported. The classifications arc as 
follows: 

Nonspcndablc: 

Restricted: 

Committed: 

Assigned: 

Amounts that cannot be spent because arc either (a) not in spendable form or (b) 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Amounts constrained by external parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws 
and regulations of other governments), imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or by enabling legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the 
Municipality to assess, levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment or resources 
(from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement 
that those resources be used only for the spccilic purposes stipulated in the 
legislation. Legally enforceability means that the Municipality can be compelled 
by an external party such as citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary to use 
resources created by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the 
legislation. 

Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed through formal action (ordinance or resolution) by consent of the 
government's highest level of decision-making authority, which in the case of the 
Municipality is the Mayor and the Municipal Legislature. Those committed 
amounts cannot be used for any other purposes unless the Mayor and the 
Municipal Legislature remove or change the specified use by taking the same 
type of action (ordinance or resolution) they employed to commit those amounts. 
Formal action to commit fund balance to a specific purpose should occur prior to 
the end of the fiscal year, but the amount, if any, which will be subject to the 
constraint, may be determined in the subsequent period. 

Amounts that arc constrained by the Municipality's intent to be used for specific 
purposes, but arc neither restricted nor committed. In distinction to committed 
balances, the authority for making an assignment is not required to be the 
government's highest level of decision-making authority, (both the Mayor and 
the Municipal Legislature). It is the Municipality's policy that intent can be 
expressed by the Mayor, the Finance Director (the official to which the Mayor 
has also delegated the authority to assign amounts) or by any other official or 
body to which the Mayor delegates. Furthermore, the nature of the actions 
necessary to remove or modify an assignment is not as prescriptive as it is with 
commiued fund balances. With the exception of the general fund, this is the 
residual fund balance of the classilication of all governmental funds with positive 
fund balances. Action taken to assign fund balance may be made after year-end. 
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Unassigned: Is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all spendable 
amounts not restricted, commiued or assigned. The general fund is the only fund 
that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. For all other 
governmental funds the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit 
balance resulting for the overspending for specific purposes for which amounts 
had been restricted, commiued or assigned. 

17. Frmd balance flow assumptio11s 

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources 
(the total of commined, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as 
restricted, commined, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow 
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources arc considered to be applied. It is the government's 
policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted 
fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, 
commincd fund balance is depicted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied 
last. 

18. Risk fi11a11ci11g 

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for professional, public responsibility, property and theft, auto and 
fidelity bond losses. In addition, the Municipality also obtains medical insurance for its employees. Pursuant to Act 
No. 63 of June 21, 20 I 0 the municipalities of Puerto Rico procure and manage, al their own discretion, all insurance 
policies, including those related to the health plans provided to the municipal employees. The total cost of the annual 
insurance premiums is paid in full and recorded as expense by the Municipality during the fiscal year. 

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance though the State Insurance Fund Corporation, a 
component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This insurance covers workers against injuries, disability or 
death because of work or employment-related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their 
employment. The annual cost of insurance is allocated to the Municipality and amounts arc withheld from the 
monthly advances of properly tax and municipal equalization fund sent lo the Municipality by the CRIM. 

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by automobile accidents. This 
insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents Compensation Administration, a component unit of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The annual premium is paid per licensed motor vehicle. 

The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and drivers' insurance coverage 
for its employees through various insurance programs administered by the Puerto Rico Department of Labor and 
Human Resources ("PRDOL"). These insurance programs cover workers against unemployment and provide 
supplementary insurance coverage for temporary disability or death because of work or employment-related 
accidents or because of illness suffered as a consequence or their employment. Unemployment compensation, non­
occupational disability and drivers' insurance premiums arc paid directly lo the PRDOL on a cost-reimbursement 
basis. 

Settled cases have not exceeded insurance coverage for any of the past three years. 
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19. Use of estimates 

The preparation of the basic linancial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepled in the 
Uniled Stales of America requires management lo make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, deferred outnows, liabilities, deferred innows and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities al the date 
of the basic linancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

20. Adoptio11 of new accm111ti11g pro11mmceme11ts - GASB Statements No. 68 and 71 

Effective July I, 2014, the Municipality adopted the provisions of the GASB Stateme11t No. 68 "Acco11nti11g and 
Fi11a11cia/ Reporting for Pe11sio11s-a11 ame11d111e111 of GASB Statemelll No. 27" and GASB Statemellt No. 71 
"Pension Transition for Co11trib11tio11s Made S11bseq11e11t to the Meas11reme111 Date". 

The primary objective of Statement No. 68 is lo improve accounting and linancial reporting by stale and local 
governments for pensions. It also improves information provided by stale and local governmental employers about 
financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement replaces the requirements of 
Statement No. 27, Acco11111ing for Pensions by State and local G01•ern111e111al Employers, as well as the requirements 
of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that arc provided through pension plans 
administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. This Statement will bring the effect of 
GASB Statement No. 67 "Fi11a11cial Reporting for Pe11sio11 Plans- an ame11dme111 of GASB Statement No. 25" into 
the accounting records of the individual agencies, component units and municipalities, whose employees participate 
in the Retirement Systems. The Municipality, as a cost·sharing employer, reported its allocated share of the 
Commonwealth's resulting Net Pension Liability from Stalement No. 67 based on their respective individual 
proportion to the coUective net pension liability of aU thc governments participating. 

The objective of Statement No. 71 is lo address an issue regarding application of the transtllon prov1s1ons of 
Statement No. 68, Acco11nti11g and Fi11a11cial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with 
contributions, if any, made by a stale or local government employer or non~employer contributing entity to a defined 
benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government's beginning net pension liability. This Statement 
amends paragraph I 37 of Statement No.68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning 
deferred outnow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the 
beginning net pension liability. The provisions of this Statement shall be applied simultaneously with the provisions 
of Statement No.68. 

The implementation of these Statements have a significant impact on the Municipality's governmcnl·wide 
statements by restating the net position al beginning of year, recognition of deferred outnows and innows of 
resources in the current year, recording of pension expense, adding new disclosure requirements and required 
supplementary information. Please refer to Notes F, N and Q. The implementation has no impact on the 
Municipality's fund statements. 

2 J. F11t11re adoptio11 of accormtitig pr01w1111ceme11ts 

The GASB has issued the following statements, which the Municipality has not yet adopted: 

a. GASB Statement No. 72 "Fair Val11e Measurement and Applicatio11 ". This Statement addresses accounting and 
linancial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. It also provides guidance for applying fair value to 
certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. The provisions of this Statement are 
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2016). 
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Earlier application is encouraged. 

NOTE A • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES • Continued 

b. GASB Stateme11t No. 73 "Acco1111ting and Financial Reporting for Pe11sio11s and Related Assets That Are Not 
witlti11 the Scope of GASB Statemellt 68, and Ame11dme11ts to Certai11 Pr01•isio11s of GASB Statements 67 and 
68". The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about pensions included in the 
general purpose external financial reports of state and local governments for making decisions and assessing 
accountability. This Statement establishes requirements for defined benefit pensions that arc not within the 
scope of Statement No. 68, "Acco11111ing and Financial Reporting for Pensions," as well as for the assets 
accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions. In addition, it establishes requirements for defined 
contribution pensions that arc not within the scope of Statement 68. The Statement also amends certain 
provisions of Statement No. 67, "Financial Reporting for Pension Plans", and Statement No. 68 for pension 
plans and pensions that arc within their respective scopes. The requirements of this Statement that address 
accounting and financial reporting by employers and governmental non-employer contributing entities for 
pensions that arc not within the scope of Statement No. 68 arc effective for financial statements for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2016 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2017); the requirements of this Statement that address 
financial reporting for assets accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions arc effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2015 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2016); and the requirements of this Statement for 
pension plans that arc within the scope of Statement No. 67 or for pensions that arc within the scope of 
Statement No. 68 arc effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2016). 
Earlier application is encouraged. 

c. GASB Stateme11t No. 74 "Financial Reporting for Postemploymellt Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans". 
The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about postemployment benefits 
other than pensions (other postcmploymcnt benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external financial 
reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing accountability. This 
Statement replaces Statements No. 43, "Financial Reporting for Postemploymellt Benefit Plans Other Tlian 
Pension Plans", as amended, and No. 57, "OPEB Meas11re111e11ts by Agellt Employers a11d Agellt M11ltiple· 
Employer Plans". 

It also includes requirements for defined contribution OPEB plans that replace the requirements for those OPEB 
plans in Statement No. 25, "Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans a11d Note Disclos11res for 
Defined Contribution Plans", as amended, Statement No. 43, and Statement No. 50, "Pension Disclosures". 
The Statement establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for governments whose 
employees arc provided with OPEB, as well as for certain non-employer governments that have a legal 
obligation to provide financial support for OPEB provided to the employees of other entities. The provisions of 
this Statement arc effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2016 (fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017). Earlier application is encouraged. 

d. GASB Statement No. 75 "Acco1111ting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions". The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state 
and local governments for postcmployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or 
OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial 
support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements 
No. 45, "Acco1111ting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployme/11 Benefits Otlier Tha11 
Pensions", as amended, and No. 57, "OPEB Meas11reme11ts by Agellt Employers and Agellt M11Jtiple-E111ployer 
Plans", for OPEB. Statement No. 74, "Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Tha11 
Pension Plans", establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans. The 
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2017 
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(fiscal year ended June 30, 2018). Earlier application is encouraged. 
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

e. GASB Stateme11t No. 76 "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local 
Go1•em111ents". The objective of this Statement is lo identify-in the context of the current governmental 
financial reporting environment-the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The 
"GAAP hierarchy" consists of the sources of accounting principles used to prepare financial statements of state 
and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the framework for selecting those principles. 
This Statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of 
authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other 
event is not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. This Statement supersedes Statement No. 55, 
"Tire Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accormting Principles for State and Local Go11em111ents". The 
provisions of this Statement arc effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015 
(fiscal year ended June 30, 2016) and should be applied retroactively. Earlier application is permiued. 

f. GASB Staleme11I No. 77 "Tax Abatemelll Disclosures". Financial statement users need information about 
certain limitations on a government's ability to raise resources. This includes limitations on revenue-raising 
capacity resulting from government programs that use tax abatements to induce behavior by individuals and 
entities that is beneficial to the government or its citizens. Tax abatements arc widely used by state and local 
governments, particularly lo encourage economic development. For financial reporting purposes, this Statement 
defines tax abatement as resulting from an agreement between a government and an individual or entity in 
which the government promises lo forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises lo subsequently take 
a specific action that contributes lo economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. 
Although many governments offer tax abatements and provide information to the public about them, they do 
not always provide the information necessary to assess how tax abatements affect their financial position and 
results of operations, including their ability lo raise resources in the future. This Statement requires disclosure of 
tax abatement information about (I) a reporting government's own lax abatement agreements and (2) those that 
arc entered into by other governments and that reduce the reporting government's tax revenues. The provisions 
of this Statement arc effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2015 (fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2017). Earlier application is encouraged. 

g. GASB State111e11t No. 78 "Pensions Pro1•ided tliro11glr Certain M11/tiple-E111ployer Defined Benefit Pension 
Plans". The objective of this Statement is to address a practice issue regarding the scope and applicability of 
Statement No. 68, "Acco11111ing and Financial Reporting for Pensions''. This issue is associated with pensions 
provided through certain multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans and to stale or local governmental 
employers whose employees are provided with such pensions. This Statement amends the scope and 
applicability of Statement 68 lo exclude pensions provided to employees of stale or local governmental 
employers through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that (I) is not a state or local 
governmental pension plan, (2) is used to provide defined benefit pensions both to employees of state or local 
governmental employers and to employees of employers that are not state or local governmental employers, and 
(3) has no predominant stale or local governmental employer (either individually or collectively with other state 
or local governmental employers that provide pensions through the pension plan). This Statement establishes 
requirements for recognition and measurement of pension expense, expenditures, and liabilities; note 
disclosures; and required supplementary information for pensions that have the characteristics described above. 
The provisions of this Statement arc effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 
2015 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2017). Earlier application is encouraged. 

h. GASB Stateme11t No. 79 "Certain External lnvestmellf Pools and Pool Participallts". This Statement addresses 
accounting and financial reporting for certain external investment pools and pool participants. Specifically, it 
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establishes criteria for an external investment pool to qualiry for making the election to measure all or its 

NOTE A w SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES w Continued 

investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. The provisions of this Statement arc effective for 
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2015 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2017). Earlier 
application is encouraged. 

i. GASB Stateme11t No. 80 "Ble11di11g Requirements for Certain Co111po11e11t U11its-a11 ame11d111e11t of GASB 
Statement No. 14" The objective of this Statement is lo improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial 
statement presentation requirements for certain component units. This Statement amends the blending 
requirements established in paragraph 53 of Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended". 
This Statement amends the blending requirements for the financial statement presentation of component units of 
all state and local governments. The additional criterion requires blending of a component unit incorporated as a 
not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate member. The additional 
criterion docs not apply to component units included in the financial reporting entity pursuant to the provisions 
of State111e11t No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Orga11iwtio11s Are Compo11e111 Units". The requirements 
of this Statement arc effective for reporting periods beginning after June I 5, 2016 (fiscal year ended June 30, 
2017). Earlier application is encouraged. 

j. GASB Statement No. 81 "Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements" The objective of this Statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recognition and 
measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. The requirements 
of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016 (fiscal year ended June 
30, 2018). Earlier application is encouraged. 

k. GASB Statement No. 82 "Pe11sio11 /ss11es-a11 ame11d111e11t of GASB Statemellls No. 67, No. 68 and No. 73". The 
objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, 
No. 68 and No. 73, Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding ( 1) the presentation of payroll-related 
measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of 
deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the 
classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. 

The requirements of this Statement arc effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016 (fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2017), except for the requirements of this Statement for the selection of assumptions in a 
circumstance in which an employer's pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer's most 
recent fiscal ycar~end. In that circumstance, the requirements for the selection of assumptions arc effective for 
that employer in the first rcporling period in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on or after 
June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged. 

The impact that these statements will have on the Municipality's financial statements is currently under evaluation 
by the Municipality's management. 

21. Reclassificatiom 

Various reclassifications have been made in the accompanying basic financial statements which affect the 
comparability with the basic financial statemenls issued for previous fiscal years. 
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Custodial credit risk - deposits, is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be 
returned lo it. The Municipality maintains cash deposits in commercial and governmental banks localed in Puerto 
Rico. Under Commonwealth of Puerto Rico statutes, public funds deposited in commercial banks must be fully 
collatcralized for the amount deposited in excess of insurance provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC). All securities pledged as collateral by the Municipality arc held by agents designated by the 
Puerto Rico Secretary of Treasury but not in the Municipality's name. 

At year-end the Municipality's bank balance of deposits in commercial banks amounting to $2,525, I 02 were 
covered by the FDIC and by pledged securities. 

Deposits in governmental banks, all of which arc uninsured and uncollateralizcd, arc exposed to custodial credit risk. 
At year-end, the Municipality's bank balance in the Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico ("GOB"), the 
Commonwealth's governmental bank, amounts to $9,522,087 which arc distributed as follows: 

Description 
Unspent proceeds of general and special obligation bonds and notes 
Undisbursed balance of property tax collections (CAE) restricted for 

the repayment of the Municipality's general and special obligation 
bonds and notes 

Undisburscd balance of sales and use tax collections restricted for the 
repayment of the Municipality's general and special obligation bonds 
and notes 

Investment in certificates of deposits 
Cash deposits of other Federal and Commonwealth grants 

$ 

$ 

Bank 
Balance 
Amount 

2,568,995 

2,126,927 

1,150,100 
3,472,251 

203,814 
9,522,087 

The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its instrumentalities are currently facing a severe fiscal and liquidity 
crisis. Continued operational deficits and lack of access to capital markets have resulted in delays in the 
repayment of loans outstanding by the Commonwealth and its instrumentalities with GOB. This in turn has 
severely affected the GDB's liquidity position and the ability to repay its obligations. If GOB docs not obtain 
adequate funding from the Commonwealth for fiscal year 2017 and is not able to consummate a comprehensive 
debt restructuring, or to otherwise obtain additional funding or other arrangements with its creditors, GDB may 
not be able to continue as a going concern. 

On April 6, 2016 the Commonwealth approved Act 21-2016 known as the Puerto Rico Emergency Moratorium 
a11d Fi11a11cial Rehabilitatio11 Act ("Act No. 21 ") (as amended) to declare a moratorium on debt service 
payments and to delay related creditor remedies for a temporary period for the Commonwealth and certain of its 
instrumentalities, including GDB. Act No. 21 allows the Commonwealth's Governor to take any and all actions 
that arc reasonable and necessary to allow GOB to continue carrying out its operations. The temporary period 
set fourth lasts until January 31, 2017, with a two-month extension period at the Governor's discretion. 
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS • Continued 

Also, in relation lo GDB, Act No. 21 allows that the Board of Oireclors of GOB or the Secretary of the Treasury 
of Puerto Rico shall have the power lo recommend lo the Governor lhc appointment of a receiver for GOB if the 
Board of Directors of GOB or the Secretary of the Treasury of Puerto Rico determines thal: (I) GOB 's assets 
arc Jess than its obligations lo its creditors; (2) GOB is unable lo pay valid debts or obligations as they mature in 
the normal course of business; (3) GOB is operating in an unsafe or unsound condition to perform its statutory 
functions; or (4) GOB has incurred or is likely to incur losses that will deplete all or substantially all of its 
capital, and there is no reasonable prospect for the Bank to become adequately capitalized. If GOB were to be 
placed into receivership al some point in the future, the Secretary of the Treasury would have the power to, if so 
requested by GDB's receiver, organize a bridge bank. The new bridge bank could assume certain of GDB's 
liabilities and purchase certain of its assets. 

Act No. 21 also creates the Puerto Rico Fiscal Agency and Financial Advisory Authority ("the Authority") 
which is established as an independent public corporation and governmental instrumentality with separate legal 
existence, fiscal and administrative autonomy and independence from the Commonwealth. The Authority is 
created for the purpose of acting as fiscal agent, financial advisor and reporting agent of the Commonwealth and 
its public corporations, instrumentalities, commissions, authorities, municipalities and political subdivisions and 
to assist such entities in confronting the grave fiscal and economic emergency that the Commonwealth is 
currently experiencing. All fiscal agency, financial advisory and reporting functions of GOB arc transferred 10 

the Authority. 

On April 8, 2016, the Commonwealth's Governor signed Executive Order No. 2016-010 ("EO No. 2016-010") 
declaring the Bank in state of emergency pursuant to Act No. 21. EO No. 2016-010 implemented a regulatory 
framework governing GOB's operations and liquidity by prohibiting loan disbursements by GDB and 
establishing a procedure with respect to withdrawals, payments and transfer requests with respect of funds held 
on deposits al GOB by the Commonwealth and its instrumentalities, including the Municipalities. The 
withdrawal, payment and transfer of funds held on deposit at GOB arc restricted 10 those reasonable and 
necessary lo ensure the provision of essential services and the GOB is authorized to establish weekly limits on 
the aggregate amount of such disbursements. Moreover, EO No. 2016-010 prohibits GOB depositors from 
printing or writing checks creditable against their accounts at GOB, unless they obtain a temporary waiver from 
GOB. Pursuant 10 EO No. 2016-010, on April 12, 2016 the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury and the Puerto 
Rico Office of Management and Budget issued Circular Leiter No. I 300-31 · I6 DH \ I 30- I 6 OGP to establish 
specific procedures to be followed by the Commonwealth instrumentalities and Municipalities 10 request the 
disbursement of its funds deposited in GOB. 

Notwithstanding lhc aforementioned uncertainties, the Commonwealth has assured the Municipalities that, 
although they arc currently suffering restrictions to access its funds deposited in GOB, such deposits in GDB 
will not be lost but granted for disbursements as the Municipalities follows the requirements of EO No. 2016~ 
010 and subject lo GDB's adequate liquidity levels. On January and July 2016, the GDB has met its scheduled 
principal and interest payments on Municipalities' general and special obligation bonds and notes pledged with 
special collections of property and sales and use taxes ("CAE" and "IVU"). The management of the 
Municipality is currently requesting funds in accordance with EO No. 2016·0!0 requirements in order to be 
disbursed in accordance with their original purposes. The ultimale resolution of these mailers is currently 
undctcrminable. 
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NOTE C - DUE FROM GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 

Amounts due from governmental entities as of June 30, 2015 follows: 

Major fund - General fund: 
P.R. Electric Power Authority (PREPA) 
P.R. Department of Treasury - Christmas bonus 

reimbursement 
COFIM - final settlement of 1 % Municipal Transfer 

Major fund - CDBG fund: 
Office of Commissioner of Municipal Affairs - CDBG 

Major fund - Debt service fund: 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM ) - property 

taxes 
GDB - final settlement of !VU Municipal Redemption 

Fund and FAM Municipal Development Fund 
Other governmental funds: 

P.R. Department of Labor - Law #52 
P.R. Department of Transportation 
P.R. Department of Education - Twenty First Century 

Community Learning Centers 
P.R. Office of Ombudsman Administration (OAP}-OAP­

Spccial Program for the Aging- Title Ill Part B 

Commomveallh 
Government 

$ 285,063 

35.945 
33,448 

285,713 

28.354 

238,296 
42,500 

$ 949.319 

Federal 
Government 

$ 

182,949 

401.424 

65.522 
$ 649,895 

Certain amounts arc recorded as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds statements s ince they arc 
not available as required by current standards. Sec related Note G. 

NOTE D - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

I. D11e from/to other ftmds 

Amounts due from/10 other funds represent temporary advances to other funds by the general fund payroll and 
payroll taxes expenditures, as follows: 

Receivable Fund 
General Fund 

Other Governmental 
Funds 

Parable Fund 
Major funds: 

CDBG 
Law No. 212 

Other Governmental Funds 
Section 8 
Law52 
Tille Ill 
Child Care (Red de Cuido) 
LRCU 
DTOP 
21th Century 

Major Fund: 
Law No. 212 

Amount 

$ 36,504 
330.499 

4,325 
226,114 

74.891 
8,601 
5,000 

54,562 
45,999 

786,495 

4.500 
$ 790,995 
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NOTED - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - Continued 

2. Trallsfers ;,, (out) 

Trunsfer (out) Fund Trunsfer in Funds Amount 
Debt Service Fund General fund $ 1.563.457 
Bonds and Notes 

Issuance Fund Gener.II fund 160,202 
Other Governmental 

Funds General fund 139,160 
General Fund and other 

governmental funds Proprietary fund 470.537 
$ 2,333,356 

Transfers among individual funds were made for operational purposes. Transfers include: 

a. Transfers from debt service fund lo lhe general fund for excess funds for $1,561,851 and interest earned on 
restricted cash of $1,606. 

b. Transfers of $160,202 from bonds and notes issuance fund to the general fund for interest on cash restricted 
with fiscal agent. 

c. Transfers of $17,682 and $121.478 from other governmental funds to lhe general fund of cash resulting from 
the closing of miscellaneous inactive funds and the transfer of Irene Storm funds, respectively. 

d. Transfers of $470,537 from the general fund ($115,000) and from other governmental funds ($355,537) for 
operJting subsidies lo the enterprise fund - Municipal Enterprise Centro Diagnostico y Trntamicnto. 

THIS SPACE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY IN BUNK. 
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NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capi1al assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows: 

Balam:e 
JulI 1, 2014 lncreuses Dec reuses 

Governmental uctivities: 
Capilal assets, not being depreciated; 

Land $ 10,462,413 $ $ 
Construction in progress 3,786.710 736.870 3.186.208 

Totul cupitul usscts not being depreciated: 14.249,123 736.870 3.186.208 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Building 11,946.952 2,660,758 
Building improvements 15.569.219 771.434 
Infrastructure 10.410,484 199,420 
Infrastructure improvements 5.670.809 368,034 
Equipment 2,996,202 91.904 
Furniture & fixtures 626,260 32,616 
Works of art 1,960 
Computer equipment 623.513 159,797 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 3,541.735 9,000 

Total capital assets being depreciated 51,387.134 4,292.963 

Less accumulated depreciation ror: 
Building 5,167,592 :HI.388 
Building improvements 1.334,960 401,837 
Infrastructure 3.049,616 203,635 
Infrastructure improvements 2,383.960 376.090 
Equipment 2.654,299 100,365 
Furniture & fixtures 616,846 5,380 
Works of art 1,306 
Computer equipment 550,062 49,867 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 2.794.809 258.520 

Total accumulated depreciation 18,553,450 1,707,082 

Total capital ussets being depreciated, net 32.833,684 2,585,881 

Governmentul uctivities cupital ussets, net $ 47,082,807 $ 3,322,751 $ 3,186,208 

Depreciation expense was charged lo functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 301,916 
Public works and sanitation 559,064 
Public safety 72,552 
Culture and recreation 460,017 
Welfare and communily developmenl 195.248 
Health 98,064 
Education 20.221 

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities $ 1,707,082 

Balance 
June JO, 2015 

$ 10,462.413 
1.337.372 

11.799.785 

14,607,7!0 
16,340,653 
10,609,904 
6,038,843 
3,088,106 

658.876 
1,960 

783.310 
3.550.735 

55.680.097 

5,478,980 
1.736,797 
3.253.251 
2,760,050 
2,754,664 

622.226 
1,306 

599,929 
3.053.329 

20.260,532 

35.419,565 

$ 47,219,350 
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NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT 

J. S11111111ary of /011g- term debt activity 

The following summarizes activity in long-term debt for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015: 

Dulunce ul 
July 1, 2014 us Duhmceul 

res luted Increases Deere uses June 30, 2015 
General, special 

obligations bonds 
and notes $ 16.838.000 $ $ 837.000 $ 16,001,000 

Notes payable to 
CRIM: 
Law No. 42 464,029 13,968 450,061 
Financing of 
delinquent accounts 
(Law No. 146) 164,740 9,151 155,589 
Property lax 
advances 33,785 33,785 

Compensated 
absences 1,280,691 1,207 76,108 1,205,790 

Christmas bonus 141.876 143,780 141,876 143,780 
Payable 10 PREPA 716.685 431,622 285,063 
Judgments and claims 288,000 288,000 
Net pension liability 20,840.934 1.898.239 22,739,173 

$ 40,446,955 $ 2,365,011 $ t,509,725 $ 41,302,241 

2. Ge11eral a11d special obligatio11 bo11ds a11d 11otes 

Due within 
one ,l'.Cllr 

$ 858.000 

14.844 

9,152 

231.363 
143.780 
285.063 
138.000 

$ l,680,202 

Pursuant lo Act No. 64 of July 3, 1996 as amended, known as the Puerto Rico Municipal Financing Act of 
1996, the Municipality is subject lo a legal limitation on the total amount of indebtedness for general obligation 
bonds or notes, special obligation bonds, notes or instruments. The legal debt limitation of the Municipality for 
general obligation bonds or notes or notes in advance of general obligation bonds is equal to 10% of the total 
appraised value of the property located in the Municipality, as such appraisal values arc determined by the 
CRIM. For special obligation bonds, notes or instruments the Municipality is prevented lo incur in additional 
obligations if the annual payment of principal and interest on said bonds, notes or instruments together with the 
annual payment of principal and interest of the outstanding ones al that time exceeds 10% of the average 
recurring operating income of the Municipality of the 2 fiscal years immediately preceding the current fiscal 
year. These limitations are not applicable to obligations or loans whose source of repayment is the IVU 
Municipal Redemption Fund. Debt margin for these obligations is based on the Municipality's repayment 
capacity. 

The Municipality's outstanding general and special obligation bonds and notes at June 30, 2015 amount lo 
$16,001,000. All these bonds are serviced by the Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GOB) 
maturing at various dates. The Municipality levies an annual additional special ad valorem lax of 2% of the 
assessed value of personal and real property which is collected by the CRIM and deposited in the CAE 
Redemption Fund at GDB. In addition, .2% of the .5% municipal sales and use tax collected by the P.R. 
Department of Treasury is deposited in the IVU Municipal Redemption Fund at GDB. Debt service funds has 
been established for the bonds and notes at GDB with the proceeds of those property and sales and use taxes, 
whereby sufficient funds must be set aside in order lo cover the projected debt service requirement, before any 
new bonds are issued. 
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Principal and interest payments on long term debt arc made through the CAE sinking fund, except general and 
special obligation bonds and notes $3, 165,000, $395,000, $245,000, $890,000, $770,000 and $2,785,000, which 
arc made through the IVU Municipal Redemption Fund. A detail of the general and special obligation bonds 
and notes as of June 30, 2015 follows: 

2003 general obligation bonds of $4,430,000 due in annual installments of 
$75,000 to $345,000 through January I, 2027; bearing interest al rates ranging 
from 4.17% to 5.31 % (4.53% atJunc 30, 2015) 

2008 general obligation bonds of $2,645,000 due in annual installments of 
$55,000 lo $220,000 through January I, 2038; bearing interest at rates ranging 
from 1.53% lo 7.50% (1 .52% at June 30, 2015) 

2008 special obligation note or $3, 165,000 due in annual installmcnls of $60,000 
lo $270,000 through July I, 2032; bearing interest al rates ranging from 1.53% 
lo 7.50% (1.52% at June 30, 2015) 

2010 general obligation notes of $50,000 due in annual installments of $7,000 10 

$8,000 through January I, 2017; bearing interest at a rate of 4.13%. 

2011 general obligation notes of $1,210,000 due in annual installments of 
$160,000 lo $215,000 through July I, 2017; bearing interest at rates ranging 
from 6.00% lo 7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2015) 

2011 general obligation bonds of $I, 195,000 due in annual installments of 
$55,000 to $130,000 through July I, 2025; bearing interest at rates ranging 
from 6.00% lo 7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2015) 

2012 general obligation notes of $305,000 due in annual installments of $35,000 
lo $55,000 through July 1, 2018; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% 
to 7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2015) 

2012 general obligation bonds of $1,510,000 due in annual installments of 
$60,000 to $160,000 through July I, 2026; bearing interest at rates ranging 
from 6.00% to 7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2015) 

2012 special obligation note of $395,000 due in annual installments of $50,000 10 

$70,000 through July I, 2018; bearing interest al rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2015) 

2012 special obligation bonds of $245,000 due in annual installments of $20,000 
to $35,000 through July 1, 2021; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% 
to 7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2015) 

$ 

Outstanding 
Amount 

3,125,000 

2,310,000 

2,840,000 

16,000 

600,000 

990,000 

195,000 

1,330,000 

250,000 

190,000 
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2012 special obligation bonds of $890,000 due in annual installments of $20,000 
to $85,000 through July I, 2031; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% 
lo 7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2015) 

2012 special obligation bonds of $770,000 due in annual installments of $30,000 
to $85,000 through July I, 2026; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% 
to 7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2015) 

2012 special obligation bonds of $2,785,000 due in annual installments of 
$45,000 to $230,000 through July 2, 2036; bearing interest at rates ranging 
from 6.00% to 7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 20l5) 

$ 

Outstanding 
Amount 

825,000 

675,000 

2,655,000 
16,001,000 

The annual requirement lo amortize general and special obligation bonds and notes as of June 30, 2015 follows: 

June 30, Princi~nl Interest 
201 6 $ 858,000 $ 1,112,152 
2017 928,000 1,052,053 
2018 995,000 987,415 
2019 840,000 916,930 
2020 765,000 859,359 

2021 ~2025 4,575,000 3,435,369 
2026~2030 4,195,000 1,800,452 
2031 -2035 2,400,000 600,750 
2036-2037 445,000 50,625 

Totals $ 16,001,000 $ 10,815,105 

Credit rating agencies have been downgrading it rating on the Commonwealth debt obligations based on, among 
other problems, the years of deficit financing, pension underfunding, budgetary imbalance and a prolonged 
economic recession. These downgrades may have a significant impact in the economic environment of Puerto 
Rico and the Commonwealth Government, its instrumentalities and the municipalities in critical areas such as 
access to markets and liquidity for the current fiscal year and thereafter. Therefore, the participation of the 
Municipality in the bond market has been delayed waiting for the credit rating of the Commonwealth and its 
instrumentalities to improve or for more favorable market conditions. 
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3. Otlier lo11g-term liabilities 

Outstanding 
Amount 

Note payable to CRIM (Law No. 42) - Law No. 42 of January 26, 
2000 (as amended by Law No. 146 of October 11, 2001 and Law 
No. 172 of August 11, 2002) was enacted to authorize the CRIM 
to obtain a special loan in the form of a line of credit from the 
Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GOB) to 
finance a debt the municipalities of Puerto Rico owe to CRIM 
for excess property tax advances as of June 30, 2000. Principal 
and interest payments are financed through .48% of the net 
increase of subsidy provided by the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico's general fund. Amounts arc retained from advances of 
property tux and amounts of municipal equalization fund sent to 
the Municipality by CRIM. Law No.42 was amended by Law 
no. 146 to extend from 10 to 30 years the financing period and 
by Law No. 172 to extend the debt period to June 30, 2001. On 
July I, 2002, the Municipality entered into the financing 
agreement with CRIM for a total amount of $576,023, bearing 
interest at 6.18% and due on July I, 2032. Debt service 
requirements in future years arc as follows: $ 

June 30, Principal Interest 

2016 $ 14,844 $ 27,622 
2017 15,778 26,689 
2018 16,769 25,697 
2019 17,823 24,644 
2020 18,943 23,524 

2021-2025 114,134 98,198 
2026-2030 154,788 57,544 
2031-2032 96.982 9,184 

Totals $ 450,061 $ 293,102 

450,061 
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Outstanding 
Amount 

Note payable to CRIM (Financing of delinquent accounts)- On 
March 27, 2002, lhe Municipalily enlered inlo a linancing 
agreemenl wilh CRIM 10 linance delinquenl property lax 
accounls sold 10 privale investors, under the provision of Law 
No. 146 of Oc1obcr 11, 200 I. The agreement is in the form of a 
non-revolving line of credit bearing inlcrest of 6.5% for the lirst 
live years and variable for the next twenty-live years at 125 
points over London lnlerbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and is due 
on December I, 2032. As described in Law No. 146, interest 
payments for the lirst live years were linanced lhrough .48% of 
the net increase of subsidy provided by the Commonwealth of 
Puerlo Rico's general fund. Also, during the lirst live years, any 
collection from those delinquenl accounts was credited to the 
loan principal. After the live-year period, the loan ou1s1anding 
balance of $228,834 was restructured for a twenly-live-year 
period. Debi service requirements in future years arc as follows: $ 155,589 

June 30, Principal Interest 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

2021 -2025 
2026-2030 
2031 -2032 

Totals 

$ 

$ 

9,152 
9,152 
9,152 
9,152 
9,152 

45,762 
45,762 
18,305 

155,589 

$ 

$ 

Compcnsutcd ubsences - includes accrued vacations, sick leave 
and other benelits with similar characteristics such as 
compensatory time; represents the Municipality's commitment 
10 fund such costs from future operations. The amounl is paid 
with unrestricted funds. 

Christmas Bonus - represents the accrued portion corresponding 
lo the liscal year 2015 of the Christmas bonus to be paid in 
December 2015. 

4,125 
3,896 
3,667 
3,438 
3,208 

12,605 
6,875 
J,375 

39,189 

Outstanding 
Bulancc 

1,205,790 

$ 143,780 
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Payable to PREPA - As required by Act No. 83 or May 2, 1941, 
the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority ("PREPA") should 
annually pay to the Municipalities of Pucrlo Rico a contribution 
in lieu of tax ("CELI'') based on certain requirements as specified 
by the mentioned Act. The amount or CELI obligation is used by 
the Municipalities 10 linancc lhe annual electric utility expense 
payment IO PREPA. Balance outstanding as of June 30, 2015 or 
$285,063 represents the unamortized excess amount or annual 
energy charges over CELI obligalion of the fiscal year 2012· 
2013, which will be fully amortized during the next fiscal period. 
The applicable transactions or liscal period 2013-2014 to be 
recognized in the current year linancial statements have not been 
informed by PREPA. As of June 30, 2015, the outslanding 
amount is recognized by the Municipality as a receivable and a 
liability lo PREPA and will be paid in fiscal year 2015-2016. 

Judgments and claims - represents the estimated loss or legal 
cases lo be paid subsequent lo June 30, 2015. The final 
sculemcnt amount, if any, will be paid with unrestricted funds. 

Net pension liability - represents the proportional share or the 
collecth«c net pension liability of all employers for benefits 
provided through the pension plan as or June 30, 2015 (sec 
related Nole N). 

Outstanding 
Amount 

$ 285,063 

$ 288,000 

$ 22,739,173 

NOTE G - DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

J. Govemme11t-wide a11d govemme11talfrmds: 

Municipal license taxes ("palentes en suspcnso") arc due on July 1 and January I of the subsequent fiscal year. 
Taxes may be paid in advance to the due dates. These laxes paid in advance arc recorded as revenues or 
in nows of resources in the following fiscal period. Due to this time requirement, the amount paid in advance of 
$531,306 is recognized as deferred innows of resources as of June 30, 2015. 

2. Govemmentalftmds - 1111available reve1111es: 

As required by current standards, revenues and other governmental fund financial resources should be 
recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available. When an asset is 
recorded in governmental fund's financial slatements but the revenue is not available, the Municipality should 
report a deferred innow of resources until such time as the revenue becomes available. A detail of these 
balances follows : 
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Commonweullh 
Property Sules und Government Federal 

Tuxes Use Tuxes Funds Grunts 
Major rund - General rund: 

P.R. Electric Power Authority (PREPA) $ $ $ 285,063 $ 
P.R. Department of Treasury - Christmas 

bonus reimbursement 35,945 
COFIM - final settlement of 1% 

Municipal Transfer 33.448 
Mujor rund - USDHUD - CDBG rund: 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development - CDBG 161,851 

Mujor rund- Luw No. 212: 
Construction of Rosendo Maticnzo 

public square 338,319 
Major fund - Debt Service fund: 

Municipal Revenue Collection Center 
(CRIM) - property taxes 158,354 

GDB - final settlement of IVU Municipal 
Redemption Fund and FAM Municipal 
Development Fund 28,354 

Other covernmentul runds: 
P.R. Department of Labor - Law No. 52 232,641 
P.R. Department of Education 37.866 
Others 6,000 

$ 158.354 $ 61,802 $ 1,118,124 $ 199,717 

For deferred innows related to pensions reported in the statement of net position please refer lo Note N. 

NOTE H ·NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that arc 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. The portion of the debt attributable to 
significant unspent proceeds should not be included in the calculation. The amount of net investment in capital 
assets as of June 30, 2015 is comprised of the following: 

Description 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
Outstanding balance on capital related debt 
Unspent capital related debt proceeds 

Amount 
$ 47,219,350 

( 16,034, 783) 
2,288,379 

$ 33,472,946 
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/. Frmd bala11ce classificatim1s 

The governmental fund balance classifications and amounts at June 30, 2015 arc shown in the following table: 

Co mm unity 
De re Jo pme nt Bonds and Other 
Block Grant Notes Law Debt Governmental 

Gene rat Program Issuance No. 2U Sen·ice Funds Total 

Rcstri:tcd: 
Gencralpubli: works and sanitation s s . s 20 s . s . s 97,662 s 97,905 

Public sarcty . . . . 56,269 56,269 

Spons,culture and recreation . - . 157 Jto 157,1-10 
Housing, \\\!!fare and co mmunitydeveb pmcnt . 4 D,000 4D,OOO 
Education - - . . 350 350 
Debt service - . . 2,206,919 . 2,206,919 
Capital o u1la ys . . V71r190 . . 1,057,852 3,429,242 
Genera I government and other purposes . .1.240 20,361 23,601 

2rH4,8H 2,206,919 l,799,634 6r18 l,426 
Assigned: 

Gencralpubli: works and sanitation 124.507 . . . . 124,507 
Public sarc1y Lll5 - . . . l,ll5 
Spons,cullure and recreation 4,277 . . 4,277 
Housing, welfare and communityde\•eklpmcnt 5,038 . . . . 5,038 
Capitaloullays U58,751 . . ll58,75 I 
General government and other purposes 625,606 . . - - . 625,606 

l919,294 . . L919.294 
Unassigned 2,209,265 (161,572) . 1]38r118) - (812,470) 896,905 

$ 4,128,559 $ (161,572) s 2,374,873 s (338,318) s 2,206,919 $ 987 ,164 $ 9,197,625 
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2. F1md bala11ce deficits 

Certain special funds included in the fund statements disclosed fund balance deficits. The most significant 
balances follow: 

Funds 
Maior Funds: 

Community Development Block Grant Program 
Law 212 

Other Governmental Funds: 
P.R. Department of Labor - Law No. 52 
Rural Development Corporation 
Others 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Amount 

161,572 
338,318 

214,531 
205,282 
248,118 

These deficits result from the recognition of deferred in nows of resources for unavailable revenues. As required 
by current standards, the Municipality recorded intergovernmental revenues for reimbursement (expenditure­
driven) grants on fund statements when all applicable eligibility requirements have been met and the resources 
arc available. Any amount not covered by the corresponding award will be covered with future budgetary 
appropriations of the general fund, if necessary. 

NOTE J · PROPERTY TAXES 

The Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is responsible for the 
assessment, collection and distribution of real and personal property taxes. The tax on personal property is self­
assesscd by the taxpayer. The assessment is made on a return, which must be filed with the CRIM by May 15 of 
each year and is based on the current value at lhe date of the assessment. Real property is assessed by CRIM. The 
tax is general assessed on January I on all taxable property located within the Municipality and is based on the 
current value existing in the year 1957. For personal property, the tax is due with the return filed on or before May 
15. Taxes on real property may be paid on two equal installments, July Isl and January lst. Total tax rates in force 
as of June 30, 2015 arc 7.03% for personal property and 9.03% for real property. The distribution of these rates 
follows: 

Description 
Basic property tax rate, which is appropriated for general 

purposes and accounted in the Municipality's general fund: 
Percent that belongs to the Commonwealth's debt service 

fund: 
Percent that belongs to the Municipality's debt service fund: 
Total tax rate: 
Discount granted by law lo the taxpayers but reimbursed 10 the 

Municipality by the P.R. Treasury Department: 
Total percent to be paid by taxpayers: 

Personal Real 
Property 

4.00% 

1.03% 
2.00% 
7.03% 

(.20%) 
6.83% 

Property 

6.00% 

1.03% 
2.00% 
9.03% 

(.20%) 
8.83% 

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from property taxes on the first $15,000 of the 
assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury assumes payment of the basic 
lax to the Municipality, except for residential units assessed at less than $3,500 on which a complete exemption is 
granted. Revenue related to exempt property is recorded in the General Fund. The Municipality grants a complele 
exemption from personal property taxes up 10 an assessment value of $50,000 to retailers with annual net sales of 
less than $150,000. 
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The CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on an estimate of special governmental subsidies and the 
property taxes to be levied and which arc collected in subsequent periods. This distribution includes advances of 
property tax and amounts of municipal equalization fund from the Commonwealth government. The CRIM is 
required by law to prepare a settlement statement on a liscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between the 
amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. The CRIM prepares a 
preliminary settlement not later than three months after liscal year-end and a linal settlement not later than six 
months after liscal year-end. If actual collections exceed the advances, a receivable from CRIM is recorded. 
However, if advances exceed actual collections, a payable to CRIM is recorded. A payable of $33,785 resulting 
from the final settlement of fiscal year 2014-2015 is recorded as other long-term debt in the government-wide 
linancial statements since it will not be paid with current available linancial resources. 

NOTE K - MUNICIPAL LICENSE TAXES 

Municipal License taxes arc assessed annually by the Municipality to all organizations or entities subject to the tax 
doing business in the Municipality's location except for entities totally or partially exempt pursuant to certain 
Commonwealth's statutes. This tax is based generally on volume of business or gross sales as shown in a tax return 
that should be submitted on or before April 15. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the tax rates were as follows: 

a. Financial business - 1.50% of gross revenues 
b. Other organizations - .50% of gross revenues 

Tax payment is due 15 days after each period due date or on July 15 and January 15 of the subsequent fiscal year. 
Tax revenue is recognized at that moment by the Municipality. A discount of 5% is allowed when full payment is 
made along with tax return submission on or before five (5) business days after April 15. Municipal license taxes 
collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year in the amount of $531,306 is recorded as deferred 
inflows of resources. 

NOTE L - SALES AND USE TAXES 

As imposed by Commonwealth and Municipal laws and regulations, the citizens of Puerto Rico arc subject to sales 
and use tax ("SUT') on a broad range of goods and services. The total tax is imposed at a combined 7% rate of 
which 6% belongs to the Commonwealth (collection process administered through the Puerto Rico Department of 
Treasury) and I% for the municipalities (collection process administered through the Municipal Finance 
Corporation - "COFIM"). 

The tax is due the 20th day of each month based on tax collected in the preceding month. Merchants at the 
Municipality of Luquillo render their tax return and payment through COFIM's web site or through a bank 
institution. 

In order to address the fiscal and credit crisis of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the GDB liquidity and the 
difficult liscal situation of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, on January 24, 2014, the Commonwealth approved Act 
No. 18 and Act No. 19. Those Acts provide for the restructuring and creation of financing structures from sales and 
use tax sources to guarantee and pay municipal long term debt issuances. As a result of this legislation, the 
municipalities of Puerto Rico may improve its credit capacity along with maintaining sufficient resources for 
operations. 
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Act No. 18 known as the "Municipal Administration Fund Law" was effective February 1, 2014. This Act improves 
the financing capacity of the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation ("COFINA"), a component unit of the 
Commonwealth and a related entity of GOB and creates a special fund called "Municipal Administration Fund" 
("FAM") under custody of GOB. The FAM permits the Municipalities lo guarantee and pay long term debt and 
provide funds for ils general operations. The Act includes provisions for municipalities that do not want to be 
covered by the Act. Special rules apply for those municipalities. The Municipality of Luquillo signed the agreement 
to be covered. 

The FAM will be funded in all fiscal years with an amount anributable lo the .5% of the Commonwealth's SUT for 
the current fiscal year once all required deposits by law have been made lo COFINA from the 6% Commonwealth's 
SUT. The .5% is distributed as follows: 

a .. 2% deposited in lhc Municipal Oevelopmcnl Fund to be distributed to the municipalities lo finance 
operational costs, 

b .. 2% deposited in a Municipal Redemption Fund or may be deposited in the municipalities' general fund. The 
municipalities have the option lo maintain funds in the Municipal Redemption Fund to increase its debt 
margin and, 

c. . I% deposited in a Municipal Improvement Fund to finance capital improvement projects; these funds will 
be distributed based on legislation from the Commonwealth's Legislature. 

To the extent the amount of Commonwealth SUT collections available for deposit into the FAM during any fiscal 
year is less than the amount attributable to 0.5% of the Commonwealth sales and use tax for such fiscal year, the 
Commonwealth's General Fund is required to cover any such shortfall. 

Act No. 19, effective on February 1, 2014, created the Municipal Finance Corporation ("COFIM"), a public 
corporation and a component unit of GOB. COFIM is authorized lo issue bonds and use other financing mechanisms 
to pay or refinance all or a portion of the municipalities' debt obligations payable from the 1 % municipal SUT. The 
Act includes provisions for municipalities that do not want lo be covered by Act No. 18. Special rules apply for 
those municipalities. As discussed above the Municipality of Luquillo signed the agreement to be covered by Act 
No. 18. 

The first collections of the I% municipal SUT arc deposited into the COFIM's sinking fund until the greater of: .3% 
of the I% municipal SUT or an Annual Rental Fee ("RFA"). The RFA for fiscal year 2014-2015 is $65,541,281 and 
thereafter will be 1.5% of the RFA of the preceding fiscal period. The excess amount of I% municipal SUT 
remaining after the required deposit to the COFIM's sinking fund (the "I % Municipal Transfer") is transferred to 
the general fund of municipalities or to the Municipal Redemption Fund as decided by the municipality. If al any 
moment the required deposits lo the COFIN's sinking fund were not sufficient to pay principal and interest of any 
outstanding obligation, the deficiency will be covered by appropriations of the Commonwealth's general fund 
budget. 

The Act provides for monthly cash advances from GOB lo the Municipalities within the first ten days of each 
month. These cash advances are necessary lo address the cash shortfall caused by the timing delay resulting from the 
lag in availability of operational funds lo the municipalities caused by interposing the COFIM (Act No. 19) and 
COFINA (Act No. 18) sinking fund requirements prior to making such funds available to the municipalities. Such 
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advances arc payable from the amount to be received from 1% Municipal Transfer as a result of Act No. 19 and then 
from the FAM as a result of Act No. 18. If such cash advances exceeds the amount corresponding to the 1 % 
Municipal Transfer and the FAM, the excess will be deducted on a prorate basis from the next fiscal year cash 
advances. Otherwise, the excess amount will be paid to the municipalities. 

The COFIM Final Liquidation of the I% Municipal Transfer disclosed that actual cash collections exceeded the cash 
advances by $33,448. The amount was recorded as deferred innows of resources in the governmental fund 
statements since is not available are required by current standards. The IVU Municipal Redemption Fund Final 
Liquidation also includes the FAM Municipal Development Fund since those funds are deposited in the IVU 
Municipal Redemption Fund to increase the Municipality's credit margin. The final liquidation disclosed that the 
actual cash collections exceeded the cash advances by $28,354. The amount was recorded as deferred inflows of 
resources in the governmental fund statements since is not available arc required by current standards. 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Municipality recorded as revenue in the general fund $638, 156 which 
corresponds to the I% Municipal Transfer and $2,396 for interest and penalties. The debt service fund reported 
$936,685 corresponding to the IVU Municipal Redemption Fund and the FAM Municipal Development Fund. 

NOTE M ·INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES AND FEES, FINES AND CHARGES FOR 
SERVICES - GENERAL FUND 

J, Intergovernmental revenues in the General Fund arc comprised of the following: 

Amount of municipal subsidies and equalization fund sent by CRIM 
Reimbursement from Commonwealth Government of Christmas Bonus 

expenditure 
Commonwealth subsidies for payment of ERS's additional uniform 

contribution and special laws 

$ 

$ 

Amount 
4,157,612 

121,609 

122,606 
4,401,827 

2. Fees, fines and charges for services revenues reported in the general fund arc comprised of the following: 

Compensation in lieu of tax from the Puerto Rico 
Electric Power Authority (PREPA) 

Construction excise tax 
Rental income 
Licenses and permits 
Fines 
Other 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

1,439,679 
138,135 
39,933 

9,418 
3,163 
6,230 

1,636,558 

The amount reported as compensation in lieu of tax ("CELI") of $1,439,679 is composed of $1,008,057 of an 
estimated CELI plus $431,622 representing the amortization of prior years' CELI amount used to finance the 
prior years' excess amount of annual energy charges over the CELI obligation as reported in Note F. The 
Municipality reported as CELI and as electric power expense the estimated amount of $1,008,057 since PREPA 
has not reported to the Municipality the actual CELI and electric power expense to be reported in fiscal year 
2014-2015 financial statements. 
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J. P/011 descriptio11 

The Municipality is a participating employer in a retirement plan administered by the Employee's Retirement 
System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS). ERS covered all regular follTtime 
public employees working for the executive and legislative branches of the Commonwealth and the 
municipalities of Puerto Rico (including mayors); the firefighters and police of Puerto Rico and employees of 
certain public corporations not having their own retirement systems. Prior to July I, 2013, the system operated 
under the following benefits structures: 

• Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951 ("Act 447") effective on January I, 1952 for members hired up lo March 
31, 1990, 

• Act No. I of February 16, 1990 ("Act I") for members hired on or after April I, 1990 and ending on or 
before December 31, 1999, 

• Act No. 305 of September 24, 1999 (which amended Act 447 and Act I) for members hired from 
January I, 2000 up to June 3, 2013. 

Employees under Act 447 and Act I are participants of a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plan. 
Act 305 members arc participants under a pension program known as System 2000, a hybrid delined 
contribution plan. Under System 2000, there was a pool of pension assets invested by the System, together with 
those of the current delined benefit plan. Benefits al retirement age were not guaranteed by the Commonwealth 
and were subjected to the total accumulated balance of the savings account. Effective on July I, 2013, Act No . . 3 
of 2013 ("Act 3") amends the provisions of the different benefits structures under the ERS. Act 3 moves all 
participants (employees) under the defined benefit pension plans (Act 447 and Act I) and the defined 
contribution plan (System 2000) lo a new defined contribution hybrid plan. Contributions are maintained by 
each participant in individual accounts. Credits to the individual accounts include (I) contributions by all 
members of ERS Act 447 and Act I defined benelit pension plans after June 30, 2013; (2) the retirement 
savings account as of June 30, 2013 of System 2000 participants and, (3) the investment yield for each semester 
of the liscal year. 

2. Be11efits provided 

Eligibilitv for retirement: Act 3 establish the following retirement eligibility requirements: (I) Act 447 regular 
employees upon auaining a range between 59 to 61 years (depending of date of birth) and 10 years of creditable 
service, (2) Act I employees upon allaining 55 years with 30 years of creditable service, (3) System 2000 
regular employees upon attaining a range between 61 to 65 years (depending of date of birth) and, (4) Act 3 
employees hired after July I, 2013 upon reaching 67 years. High risk employees (state and municipal police, 
firefighters and custody officials) under Act 447 and Act I will be eligible at 55 years with 30 years of 
creditable service, for System 2000 employees at 55 years of service and for Act I employees hired after July I, 
2013 upon reaching 58 years. 

Accrued benefits: All members arc entitled to a lifetime annuity based on the balance of the deferred 
contribution individual account at the time of the retirement calculated based on a factor that will incorporate 
the individual's life expectancy and a rate of return. For Act 447 and Act I active participants, all retirement 
benefits accrued through June 30, 2013 were frozen, and thereafter, all ruturc benefits accrue under Act 3 plan. 
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These participants will receive a pension at retirement age equivalent lo what they have accrued under Act 
447and Act I up to June 30, 2013 plus the lifetime annuity corresponding to contributions made to the 
individual account after July I, 2013 as described above. Act 447 participants, except police and mayors, may 
elect to coordinate coverage with Social Security benefits ("Coordinated plan"). Under this option, participants 
arc subject to a benefit recalculation upon attainment of the Social Security Retirement Age. For all members, if 
the balance of the defined contribution individual account is less than $10,000 the amount shall be paid as a 
lump sum instead of an annuity. Effective July I, 2013, the minimum monthly pension amount for members 
who retired or disabled before July I, 2013 is $500. 

Termination benefit: Members arc eligible to a lump sum payment of the defined contribution individual 
account as of the date of the permanent separation of service upon termination of service prior to 5 years of 
service or if the balance of the defined contribution individual account is less than $10,000. 

Deferred retiremellt: Members arc eligible at the applicable retirement eligibility age to a lifetime annuity based 
on the balance of the deferred contribution individual account plus the accrued benefit as of June 30, 2013 (for 
Act 447 and Act I members) upon termination of service with 5 or more years of service (I 0 years of creditable 
service for Act 447 and Act! members) but prior to the applicable retirement eligibility, provided the member 
has not taken a lump sum withdrawal from the defined contribution individual account. 

Death benefits: For non-retired members, their designated beneficiaries will receive a refund of the balance of 
the deferred contribution individual account plus the accrued benefit as of June 30, 2013 (for Act 447 and Act I 
members). For pensioned members retired prior to June 30, 2013, the annual income to a widow or widower or 
dependent children is equal to 60% of the retirement benefit payable for life for a surviving spouse or disabled 
children and payable until age 18 or age 25 if pursuing studies for non-disabled children. For pensioned 
members retired after June 30, 2013, payments to beneficiaries will be the excess, if any, of the balance of the 
deferred contribution individual account plus the accrued benefit as of June 30, 2013 (for Act 447 and Act I 
members) over the total annuity payments paid to the member and any beneficiaries. 

Disability benefits: Members who arc permanently separated from service due to total and permanent disability, 
due to disability pursuant to Act No. 127 of June 27, 1958, as amended, or due lo terminal illness, as determined 
by the Administrator, shall be entitled to the balance of the deferred contribution individual account in a lump 
sum, or through the grant of an annuity, or any other optional form of payment pursuant to Section 5-110 of Act 
No. 447, at the option of the participant, plus the accrued benefit as of June 30, 2013 (for Act 447 and Act I 
members) at the applicable retirement eligibility age. Beginning on June 30, 2013, no disability pensions shall 
be awarded pursuant to Sections 2-107 thru 2-111 of Act No. 447. A disability benefits program is established 
which shall provide a temporary annuity in the event of total and permanent disability. Disability benefits may 
be provided through one or more disability insurance contracts with one or more insurance companies 
authorized by the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance of Puerto Rico to conduct business in Puerto Rico. 
The determination as to whether a person is partially or totally and permanently disabled shall be made by the 
insurance company that issues the insurance policy covering the participant. 

Special laws and pensioner additional benefits: The Municipality is required to cover other retirement benefits 
of its retired employees (if retired prior to July I, 2013) as required by Commonwealth's laws, including: (I) 
various special laws - ad· hoc cost of living allowance adjustments (COLA) provided in prior years; (2) various 
special laws -additional minimum pension benefits and, (3) Act 3 retired pensioners "Additional Benefits 
Program". All of these other retirement benefits arc applicable only lo employees who retired prior to July I, 
2013 under Act 447 and Act I. The "Additional Benefits Program" includes: (I) a medication bonus of $100 
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per member which shall be paid no later than July 15 or each year; (2) a Christmas bonus or $200 per member 
which shall be paid no later than December 20 or each year and, (3) a matching share or $1,200 for healthcare 
insurance plan. These healthcare benefits arc provided through insurance companies whose premiums are paid 
by the retired employees with the matching share financed by the Municipality. 

3. Co11trib11tilms 

The Act No. 3 is the authority under which obligations lo contribute lo the Plan by the Plan members, 
employers and other contributing entities arc established or may be amended. Contribution rates arc not 
actuarially determined. 

Members: All participants (non-coordinated plan) arc required to contribute 10% of gross salary. Participants 
under the Coordinated Plan (only Act 447 participants with benefits coordinated with social security benefits, as 
described above) arc required to contribute 8.5% or gross salary up to $6,600 plus 10% or gross salary in excess 
or $6,600 for fiscal year 2014-2015 and 10% or gross salary effective July I, 2015. Members may voluntarily 
make additional contributions to their defined contribution individual account. 

Pa\•roll-based emplowr co11trib11tio11: The Municipality contributed 13.275% of gross salary for fiscal year 
2014-2015. Act 3 requires an additional 1% for the next fiscal year and 1.25% annually for each of the five 
years thereafter, reaching an aggregate contribution rate of 20.525% effective July I, 2020. The Municipality 
contributed $282,997 during fiscal year 2014-2015. These amounts represented the 100% of the required 
contribution for the corresponding year. 

Additional Uni(orm Co11trib11tio11: To improve the liquidity and solvency of the ERS, the Commonwealth 
enacted Act No. 32 of 2013, which amended Act 447 lo provide for an Additional Uniform Contribution 
("AUC"). The AUC will be financed by all participating employers (including the Municipality) of the ERS. 
Beginning with the 2014-2015 until the 2032-2033 fiscal year, the AUC will be the uniform contribution 
certified by the external actuary of the ERS al least 120 days prior lo the start of each fiscal year, as necessary lo 
avoid having the projected gross assets or the ERS, during any subsequent fiscal year, to fall below 
$1,000,000,000. The ERS will determine the amount of AUC to be billed and paid by each employer during 
each fiscal year. Commonwealth laws provide for a subsidy of the AUC obligation, applicable lo all 
participating employers (including the Municipality) or the ERS that the Puerto Rico Orficc of Management and 
Budget ("OMB") determines do not have financial capability to pay the AUC obligation. For fiscal year 2014-
2015, the Municipality recorded $78,625 as expenditure in the general fund and the OMB subsidy amounted to 
$19,656. 

Disabilio· insurance: As described above, a disability benefits program is established which shall provide a 
temporary annuity in the event of total and permanent disability. All members shall mandatorily contribute to a 
disability insurance established by Act 3 for which participants shall have to contribute such sums, fixed in 
dollars or a percent of the salary determined by the ERS. The contribution required is equal to or less than .25% 
of the participant's salary. This contribution shall not be credited to the participant's deforred contribution 
individual account. 

Special laws and pensioner additional benefits: These other retirement benefits arc funded on a pay-as-you.go 
basis and billed by ERS lo the Municipality at the beginning of each fiscal year. As required by Act 3, the 
invoice includes a supplemental contribution of $2,000 per pensioner to finance the Additional Benefits 
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Program. Commonwealth laws provide for a subsidy of this obligation, applicable to all participating employers 
(including the Municipality) of the ERS that the Puerto Rico Office of Management and Budget ("OMB") 
determines do not have financial capability to pay these other retirement benefits obligation. For the fiscal year 
2014-2015, the Municipality recorded $200,289 as expenditure in the general fund and the OMB subsidy 
amounted to $102,950. 

The Municipality recorded as other assets in the government-wide and fund statements $25,773 of excess 
credits related to the AUC and special laws and additional pensioner benefits which will be applied to the fiscal 
year 2015-2016 expenditures. 

4. Pemio11 liabilities, pe11sio11 expe11se, a11d deferred 011tflmrs of reso11rces a11d deferred i11jlows of 
reso11rces related lo pensiom 

On March 8, 2016, the ERS (through the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury) issued a GASB Statement No. 
68 report of unaudited information including pension amounts by employer and the corresponding employer 
allocation percentage. The Municipality disclosed the following based on the unaudited data reported by ERS 
and the ERS June 30, 2014 Actuarial Valuation Report: 

At June 30, 2015, the Municipality reported a liability of $22,739,173 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (unaudited). The collective net pension liability, which amounts to $30,092,029,000, 
(unaudited) was measured as of June 30, 2014. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1. 2013 calculated based on a discount rate and 
actuarial assumptions and projected forward to June 30, 2014. There have been no significant changes between 
the valuation date of July I, 2013 and the fiscal year end. The Municipality's proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of the Municipality's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan 
relative to the projected contributions of all ERS participants, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2014, the 
Municipality's proportion was .07557%. 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Municipality recognized pension expense of $1,304,058. Pension expense 
represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual 
contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial 
assumptions or method, and plan benefits. At June 30, 2015, the Municipality reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Unaudited amounts as reported by ERS 
Municipality's contributions subsequent to mcasuremcnl dale 

Dcrerred Outnows 
or Resources 

$ 

$ 

776,149 
561.911 

1,338,060 

$ 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

181,968 

$ 181,968 

The $561,911 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to Municipality's contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred innows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as pension expense in future fiscal years based on the average expected remaining 
service lives of all plan participants or in the case of projected and actual investment earnings in a five-year 
period. The detailed components of the deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources were 
not informed by ERS. 
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5. Actuarial assumptio11s 

The actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 

Valuation date 
Measurement date 
Actuarial cost method 
Actuarial assumptions: 

Compensation increases 
Investment rate of return 
Discount rate 
Municipal bond rate 

Mortality 

Mortality 

July I, 2013, projected forward to June 30, 2014 
June 30, 2014 
Entry age normal method 

3.0% per year, no compensation increases are assumed until July I, 2017 
6.75%, net of investment expenses 
4.29% 
4.29%, based on Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond 
Index 
Pre.retirement mortality: 

RP-2000 Employee Mortality rates for males and females projected on a 
generational basis using Scale AA for general employees not covered by 
Act 127; RPT2000 Employee Mortality rates with blue collar adjustments 
for males and females, projected on a generational basis using Scale AA 
for employees covered by Act 127. As generational lab\cs, they reflect 
mortality improvements both before and afler the measurement date. 

Post-retirement mortality: 
Rates which vary by gender arc assumed for healthy retirees and 
beneficiaries based on a study of plan's experience from 2007 to 2012 
equal to 92% of the rates from the UP-1994 Mortality Table for Males and 
95% of the rates from the UP-1994 Mortality Table for Females. The rntes 
arc projected on a generational basis starting in 1994 using Scale AA. As 
generntional table, it rcnects mortality improvements both before and after 
the measurement date. 

Post-retirement disabled mortality: 
Rates which vary by gender arc assumed for disabled retirees based on a 
study of plan's experience from 2007 to 2012 equal to 105% of the rntes 
from the UP-1994 Mortality Table for Males and 115% of the rates from 
the UP-1994 Mortality Table for Females. No provision was made for the 
future mortality improvement for disabled retirees. 

The census data collection date has changed from end-of-year to beginning-of-year. For this switchover year, 
the June 30, 2013 census data used in the prior valuation is also used as the July I, 2013 census data for current 
valuation. The liability results as of June 30, 2014 arc based on projecting the ERS obligations determined as of 
the census data collection date of July I, 2013 for one year, using rollTforward methods and assuming no 
liability or losses. Most demographic assumptions used are based on a 2009 experience study using data as of 
June 30, 2003, June 30, 2005 and June 30, 2007. Certain demographic assumptions (termination and 
employment) were impacted by Act 3 reforms and were revised on the new retirement eligibility and expected 
future experience. 

The investment rate of return of 6.75% rcnects the asset allocation for the non-loan portion of the portfolio that 
was adopted by the ERS during December 2013 and the actuary's capital market assumptions as of June 30, 
2014. II was slightly higher than the debt service of the senior pension funding bonds payable, which range 
from 5.85% to 6.55%. 
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The pension plan's policy in regard to allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the 
ERS. Plan assets arc managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a 
positive impact on the System's financial condition for the benefits provided through the pension programs. The 
following was the ERS's adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30, 2014: 

Asset Class 
Domestic Equity 
International Equity 
Fixed Income 
Cash 

Target 
Allocation 

25% 
10% 
64% 

1% 
100% 

Long ·term 
Expected Rate of 

Return 
6.8% 
7.6% 
3.9% 
2.9% 

The Jong-term expected rate of return on pension benefits investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
investment expense and inflation) arc developed for each major asset class. These ranges arc combined to 
produce the Jong-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

6. Discor111t rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.29% as of June 30, 2014. The asset basis for 
the date of depiction is the ERS 's fiduciary net position. On this basis, the fiduciary net position is expected to 
be exhausted in the 2014-2015 fiscal year. The plan's liduciary net position was not projected to be available to 
make all projected future payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the tax free municipal 
bond index (Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index) was applied to all periods of projected 
benefits payments to determine the total pension liability. The dale of depiction of the actuarial report docs not 
include any amounts from the Additional Uniform Contribution required by Act No. 32 of 2013 because of fi scal and 
budgetary financial difficulties, continued budget deficits and liquidity risks of the Commonwealth and the 
Municipalities, in the event that their financial condition does not improve in the near term. 

7. Se11sitivity of the M1111icipality's proportio11ate share of tl1e 11el pemio11 asset to cha11ges i11 the disco1111t 
rate. 

The following presents the Municipality's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 4.29%, as well as what the Municipality's proportionate share of the net pension liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% point lower (3.29%) or 1% point higher (5.29%) than the 
current rate: 

Municipality's share of net pension liability $ 

8. Pe11sio11 pla11 jid11ciary 11et positio11. 

1% decrease 
(3.29%) 

25,801,330 

Discount rate 
(4.29% ) 

$ 22,739,173 

1 % increase 
(5.29%) 

$ 20,203,399 

Detailed information about the plan's fiduciary net position is available in the ERS audited financial statements 
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 issued on June I, 2016. 
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1. Operati11g leases 

The Municipality leases office equipment under operating lease agreements, which generally have terms or one 
year or less and arc automatically renewed for the same terms. Rental expenses amounted lo $25,268. 
Management believes that the summary of the future minimum rental commitments under non-cancclablc 
operating leases with terms exceeding one year is not significant. 

2. Comtr11ctim1 

As or June 30, 2015 the Municipality has commitments of $377,609 for design, construction, improvements or 
renovation of certain municipal facilities. 

3. E11cumbra11ces 

The Municipality has encumbrances outstanding which represent the estimated amount of expenditures required 
lo complete contracts, purchase orders and other commitments in process of completion al fiscal year-end. 
Outstanding encumbrances as of June 30, 2015 in the general fund represent unassigned amounts that arc 
encumbered and arc classified by management as assigned fund balance. Purpose classification follows: 

Purpose 
General government 
Public Safety 
Sports, culture and recreation 
Welfare and community development 

General Fund­
assigned fund 

balance 
!i 207,958 

1,115 
4,277 
5,038 

$ 218,388 

Fund balance or major and other governmental funds (special revenue, capital project and debt service funds) is 
classified as restricted, some or all of which may be encumbered, Encumbrances of restricted fund balance arc 
not reported separately from this classification because the encumbrance docs nol further restrict the purpose for 
which the resources may be used. 

NOTE P - CONTINGENCIES 

J. Federal a11d C 0111111011 wealth Gra11ts 

Projects financed by the Federal and Commonwealth Grants arc subject to audits by grantors and other 
governmental agencies in order lo determine that the expenditures comply with the conditions of such grants. It 
is the Municipality's opinion that no additional material unrecorded liabilities will arise from audits previously 
performed or lo perform. 

2. Litigatio11s 

The Municipality is, al present, a defendant in a number or legal mailers that arise in the ordinary course of the 
Municipality's activities. There arc cases whereby the Municipality is a defendant or codefendant that will be 
covered by insurance, certain cases whereby the legal counsel has not determined an outcome and other cases 
that would not be covered by insurance. However, it is the opinion or the Municipality and the legal counsel 
that based on their experience, such actions and the potential liabilities will not impair the Municipality's 
financial position. 
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The following tables disclosed the net change lo net position \ fund balances al beginning of year as previously 
rcporled in lhc llnancial slatcments. The beginning balances have been rcslaled as follows: 

J. Govemme11tal activities 

Description 
Net position al beginning of year. as previously reported 

Impact of implementation of GASB Stateme11ts N11. 68 a11d 71: 
Ncl pension liability as of June 30, 201 3 (GASB No. 68}: 
Deferred oucnows of resources - employer conlributions during 
2013-2014 year (GASB No. 71 ): 

Correction of errors - overslatcmcnt of sales and use tax receivable 

Correction of errors - understatement of expenditures in general fund's 
special fund 

Net position ut beginning or yeur, us restated 

2. Gt1vemme11tal funds 

$ 

Net Position 
Government -

wide 
Amount Statements 

$ 39,424,704 

(21.225.187) 

384,253 (20,840, 9 34) 

(130,020) 

( 144.S 10) 

$ 18,309,240 

Fund oolooce at Correction of error- Correction of error- Fund balance at 
~ginning of year, Chooges in 

as ll"'iously reporting 
Funds reJ!rled cnli!l' 

G:ncral rund s 3,515,152 s 
Special revenue rund, state and local grants 267,283 (267.2831 
Special revenue rund, other foderal granls (303,031) 303,031 
Capital projects fund, state and l~cal grants 2,730.!!82 (2.730.082J 
Debt service 3,051,250 
Other governm:ntal 29,fi.J9 960,881 
USHUD • Conununity Developm:nt Block 
Gant Program (334,1531 

Bonds and noies issuance 2,405,924 
lawNo.212 (338,3181 

$ 9,290,403 $ 

owrstalement of un~rstatement or ll!ginning or year, 
sales ooduse tal e~p;miturcs in general as JrCliously 

rccehaUe 

s 

(73.385) 

$ (130,020) $ 

fund's s~cial rund rej!rled-restated 

(l+ISlOl S 3.314,007 

2,CJ17,865 
9'.X},550 

(334,153) 
2,405,924 
(338,318) 

(144,310) $ 9,013,873 
-----~-
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Effective on July I, 2015, the Commonwealth sales and use tax ("Commonwealth SUT") increased from a current 
6% to a 10.5%, as required by Act No. 72 of May 29, 2015, an amendment to the Puerto Rico Internal Revenue 
Code of 2011, ("Act No. 72"). The Municipal SUT remains unchanged al I% for a total SUT of I 1.5%. The Act No. 
72 also imposes a Commonwealth SUT of 4% lo professional and business-lo-business services rendered s1ar1ing on 
Oclober I, 2015. 

The Municipality has evaluated subsequent evenls through August 31, 2016 which is the dale the linancial 
statements were available lo be issued. Except for the subsequent event mentioned above and the events disclosed in 
Note B, no addilional events were identilied that should be disclosed or adjusted in lhc basic linancial statements or 
its rcla1ed notes. 
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REVENUES: 

Taxes: 
Property taxes 
Municipal license taxes 
Sales and use taxes 

lnlcrgovcmmental 
Fees, lines and charges for services 
Interest 
Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 
General government 
Public works and sanitation 
Public safety 
Culture and recreation 
Health 
Welfare and community development 
Totul expenditures 

Excess or revenues over expenditures 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- GENERAL FUND 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Dudi=etcd Amounts 
Actual Amounts 

Orii=innl Finni (Budi=etnry Rusis) 

$ 3.543.584 $ 3,543,584 $ 3.543,584 
931.679 931,679 876,004 
604,049 604,049 640,552 

2,883,343 2,883,343 2,896,952 
1.203.229 1.203.229 1.204.936 

80,000 80,000 180.494 
!05,000 840.578 903.160 

9,350,884 10,086,462 I0,245,682 

5,291,267 6,145,083 6.123.467 
2.371.071 2.389,044 2.356,426 

146,876 222,370 209,388 
305,594 290.483 283,103 
357.127 276,939 276,939 
878.948 762,543 753,949 

9.350.884 10,086,462 I0,003,272 -
$ - $ - $ 242,410 

The accompanying notes arc an intcgra1 part o( this required supplementary information. 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

$ 
(55.675) 
36,503 
13,609 

1.707 
I00,494 
62,582 

159,220 

21,616 
32,618 
12.982 
7.380 

8,594 
83,190 

$ 242,410 
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JUNE 30, 2015 

NOTE A - BUDGET PROCESS AND BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The Municipal budget is prepared for the General Fund following the requirements of the Autonomous Municipal 
Law of 1991, as amended. It is developed utilizing clements of performance-based program budgeting and zero• 
based budgeting and includes estimates of revenues and other sources for ensuing fiscal year under laws existing at 
the time the budget is prepared. 

Budget amendments arc approved by the Municipal Legislature. Certain budget transfers within the limitations and 
restrictions of the Municipal Law can be approved by the Mayor or by the Municipal Legislature. The budget 
comparison schedule provides information about the original budget, the amended budget, and the actual results 
under the budgetary basis of accounting. 

The budgetary basis of accounting is different from accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of 
America ("US GAAP"). Revenues arc generally recorded when cash is received and expenditures arc generally 
recorded when the related expenditure is incurred or encumbered. The encumbrances (that is, purchase orders or 
contracts) arc considered expenditures when a commitment is made. On a US GAAP basis encumbrances 
outstanding at year-end arc reported in the governmental fund balance sheet as assigned fund balance since they do 
not constitute expenditures or liabilities while on a budgetary basis encumbrances arc recorded as expenditures of 
the current year. Encumbrance appropriations lapse one year after the end of the fiscal year. Unencumbered 
appropriations arc lapsed at year-end. The legal level of budgetary control (the level al which expenditures may not 
legally exceed appropriations) is at the function level. 

The presentation of the budgetary data excludes other appropriations such as capital projects, debt service and 
special revenue funds because projects arc funded on a multi-year nature, generally requiring several years to 
complete or effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through general obligation bond indentures and 
legal and contractual grant agreement provisions. 

NOTE B • BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION 

The accompanying budgetary comparison schedule presents comparisons of the original and final legally adopted 
budget with actual data on a budgetary basis. Since accounting principles applied for the purposes of developing 
data on a budgetary basis differ significantly from those used lo present accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States, the following budget to GAAP reconciliation is presented: 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION· 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE-GENERAL FUND 

June 30, 2015 

NOTE B - BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION - Continued 

Excess or revenues und other nnuncing sources over expenditures und other nnuncing 
uses (budgetary husis): 

Budget lo GAAP differences: 

Non-budgeted funds recorded as revenues for financial reporting purposes: 

Non-budgeted funds recorded as expenditures for financial reporting: 

Non-budgeted transfers in: 

Non-budgeted transfers out: 

Revenues recorded for financial reporting purposes but not in budgetary basis: 

Revenues recorded in budgetary basis purposes but not in financial reporting: 

Expenditures recorded for financial reporting purposes but not in budgetary basis: 

Current year encumbrances recorded as expenditures for budgetary reporting 

purposes: 

Prior year encumbrances recorded as expenditures for financial reporting 

purposes: 

Net chunge in fund bulunce (GAAP husis): 

$ 242,410 

.12,944 

(507.509) 

1,665,956 

(450,877) 

680,056 

(32.190) 

(799,753) 

176,588 

(193,073) 

$ 814,552 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

SCHEDULE OF MUNICIPALITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 
LAST IO YEARS (A) 

Proportion of the net pension liability 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (c) 

Covered-employee payroll (d) 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage ofils 
covered-employee payroll (c )/(d) 

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 

$. 

s 

SCHEDULE OF MUNICIPALITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS 
LAST 10 YEARS (A) 

Statutorily required contribution $ 

Contributions in relation to the statutorily required conlribution (e ) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 

Covered-employee payroll (0 $ 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-payroll (e )/(I) 

Fiscul year 
2015 (8) 

0.07557% 

22,739,173 

3,147.523 

722.45% 

0.42% 

Fiscul ycur 
2015 (8) 

384,253 

384,253 

3,147.523 

12.21 % 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this required supplementary information. 8l 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION­
SCHEDULE OF MUNICIPALITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 

NET PENSION LIABILITY 
AND 

SCHEDULE OF MUNICIPALITY•s CONTRIBUTIONS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

NOTE A - LAST 10 YEARS 

The Schedules arc intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become 
available. The information presented relates solely to the Municipality and not the Employee's Retirement System 
of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities as a whole. 

NOTE B - FISCAL YEAR 

The data provided in the schedule is based as of the measurement date o f the net pension liability, which is as or the 
prior fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 
BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2015 

14.871 

Line Item 
Description Housing Choice Vouchers 

No. 
Balance Sheet 

111 Cash - u nrcstrictcd $ 8.535 
113 Cash - other restricted $ 5.597 
100 Total cash s 14132 

150 !Total Current Assets s 14,132 I 
190 !Total Assets s 14,132 I 
200 IDefcm:d Outflow of Resources s I 
290 !Total Assets and Deferred Outnow of Resources s 14,132 I 
333 $ 4.325 
310 $ 4 25 

353 Non·current liabilities - other $ 1.282 
350 Total Non-current Liabilities s 1282 

300 !Total Liabilities Is 5.607 I 
400 I Deferred Inflow of Resources Is 

508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets $ . 
511.4 Restricted Net Position $ 4.421 
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position 4.104 
513 Total Enuitv/Net Position s 8.525 

600 !Total Liabilities and Eyuitv/Net Position Is 14.132 I 
Income Statement 

70600-010 Housinl? assistance payments $ 365.599 
70600-020 Omwinl! administrative fees earned $ 47.111 
70600·070 Admin fee calculation descriotion 

70600 HUD PHA oucratine erants $ 412.710 

71400 Fraud recoverv $ 300 
71500 Other revenue $ 17.634 

700 Total Revenue $ 430644 

91100 Administrative salaries $ 50.572 
91900 Other $ 3.436 
91000 Total Oocratine - Administrative s 54.008 

96900 !Total Operating Expenses Is 54.008 I 
97000 I Excess Revenue Over Operating Expenses Is 376.636 I 

97300-050 All Other $ 382.370 
97300 Housine. assistance uavments $ 382.370 
97350 HAP Portabilitv-in $ 15.409 
90000 Total Exuenses $ 451,787 

I 0000 I Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over (Under) Expenses Is (21,143)1 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this schedule. 



COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION· FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 
BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2015 

14.871 

Line Item 
Description Housing Choice Vouchers 

No. 
11030 BeJ?inninl! equity $ 29.668 

11170-001 Administrative Fee Eauitv - Bel!inninl! Balance $ 24.454 
11170·0!0 Administrative Fee Revenue $ 47.111 
11170·045 Fraud Recoverv Revenue $ 150 
11170-050 Other Revenue $ 17,634 
11170-060 Total Admin Fee Revenues $ 64,895 
11170-080 Total Ooeratinl! Elmenses $ 54.008 
11170-095 Housinl! Assistance Portabilitv In $ 15.409 
11170-100 Other Expenses $ 11.407 
11170-101 Comment For Other Ex11ense 
11170-110 Total Exoenses $ 80,824 
11170-002 Net Administrative Fee $ ( 15,929> 
11170-003 Administrative Fee Eauitv - Emlin!! Balance $ 8.525 
11170·005 Pre·2004 Administrative Fee Reserves $ -
11170-006 Post-2003 Administrative Fee Reserves $ 8.525 

11170 Adminislrntive Fee Eouitv $ 8.525 

11180-001 Housinl! Assistance Pavments E<1uitv - Bel!inninl! Balance $ 5.214 
11180·010 Housinl! Assistance Pavments Revenues $ 365.599 
11180-015 Fraud Recoverv Revenue $ 150 
11180-020 Other Revenue $ 11,407 
11180·030 Total HAP Revenues $ 377.156 
11180-080 Housinl! Assistance Pavments $ 382.370 
11180-100 Total Housinl! Assistance Pavments Expenses $ 382.370 
11180·002 Net Housinl! Assistance Pavments $ (5.214) 
11180-003 Housinl! Assistance Pavments Eauitv - Endinll Balance $ -

11180 Housinl! Assistance Puvments Euuitv $ . 
11190-210 Total ACC HCV Units 828 

11190 Unit Months A vnilnble 828 
11210 Unit Months Leuscd 772 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this schedule. 85 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

NOTE TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION • FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 
JUNE 30, 2015 

NOTE A-BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying financial data schedule ("FDS") is a trial balance of the financial statements of the Section 8 
Housing Choice Voucher Program administered by the Municipality. The FDS was created in order to standardize 
the linancial information reported by Public Housing Authorities ("PHA") lo the Real Estate Assessment Center 
("REAC"), as required by the Uniform Financial Reporting Standards ("UFRS"). REAC is the US Department of 
Housing and Urban Development's ("HUD") national management center created to assess the condition of HUD­
owned and assisted properties. The UFRS arc rules to implement requirements of 24 CFR, Part 5, Subpart H, for the 
electronic tiling of financial information 10 HUD. Because the FDS presents only a selected portion of the 
operations of Municipality, it is not inlcndcd to, and docs not present, lhe financial position and changes in nel 
posi1ion of the Municipality. 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

In accordance with the guidelines for reporting and attestation requirements of UFRS, the accompanying FDS is 
included as information supplementary to lhc financial slalements and is prepared using 1he accrual basis of 
accoun1ing. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUOUILLO 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2015 

Federal Pass-Throueh 
Federal Grantor/Pass Throueh CFDA Entity ldentifyin~ 

Grantor/Program Title Number Number 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Direct programs: 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program 14.871 NIA 

Passed-through programs from: 
Office of ~ommissioner of Municipal Affairs: 

Community Development Block Grants/State's Program and 
Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 14.228 AB • 41 , FC - 41 

Subtotal U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

U.S. Department of Education 
Passed-through program from: 

P.R. Department of Education 
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 2014-AF-0151 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Passed-through programs from: 

e.R. Orlicc of the Omhudsman for the Elderl;t: 

Aging Cluster: 
Special Programs for the Aging_ Tittle Ill Part B_ Grants for 

Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044 N\AV 
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 N\AV 

Total Aging Cluster: 

P.R. Department of Famil;t • Families and Children Administration: 
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 N\AV 

Subtotal U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this schedule. 

Federal 
Expenditures 

$ 412,710 

456,675 
869,385 

1,346,510 

133,850 
18,400 

152,250 

194,506 
346,756 

$ 2.5622651 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the fcderJI grant activity of the Municipality 
under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2015. The information in this schedule is presented 
in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, local Go1·er11mc11ts am/ Nonprofit 
Orga11i:.atio11s. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from the amounts presented in, or used in 
the preparation of, the basic financial statements. Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations 
of the Municipality, it is not intended to, and docs not present, the financial position and changes in net position of the 
Municipality. 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule arc reported on the modified-accrual basis of accounting, except for Section 8 
Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCV). Expenditures are recognized when the relatell liability is incurred following the 
cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87 Cost Pri11ciples for State, local a11d l11dia11 Tribal Go1•en1111e11ts, wherein 
certain types of expenditures arc not allowable or arc limited as to reimbursement. Expenditures for HCV Program arc 
reportell on a statutory basis as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. Such expenditures 
should equal the net ACC subsidy for the PHA's liscal period. 

The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number is a program identification number. 111e first two digits 
identify the federal department or agency that administers the progrnm and the last three numbers arc assigned by 
numerical sequence. 

State or local government redistributions of federal awards to the Municipality, known as "pass- through awards'', should 
be treared by the Municipality as though they were received directly from the fcderJl government. OMB Circular A- 133 
requires the schedule to include the name of the pass- through entity and the identifying number assigned by the pass­
through entity for the federal awards received as a sub recipient. Numbers idcntilied as NIA are not applicable and 
numbers identified as N/AV are not available. 

NOTE C - RECONCILIATION OF EXPENDITURES PRESENTED IN THE SCHEDULE OF 
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS TO THE EXPENDITURES PRESENTED IN THE BASIC 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Description 
14.871 
14.228 
84.287 
93.044 
93.053 
93.575 

Total federal awards expenditures: 
Additional amount recorded as 
expenditurt..'S under modified accrual basis 
for Section 8 HCV Program: 
Non-federal awards expenditures: 
Total expenditures, fund statements: 

$ 

Community 
Development Block 

Grunt Program 

456,675 

456,675 

$ 456,675 

Other 
Governmentul 

Funds 
$ 412.710 

$ 

1.346,510 
133,850 
18.400 

194.506 
2,105,976 

35.482 
890.712 

3,032,170 

88 



LI IJJ!l I L6pez-Vega,CPA,PSC 

Certified Public Accountants I Management Advisors 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality or Luquillo 
Luquillo, Puerto Rico 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing s1andards generally accepled in the Uni1cd Slates of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing S1andards issued by lhe Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Luquillo, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Municipality or 
Luquillo's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated August 31, 2016. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Municipality of Luquillos's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that arc appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipality or Luquillo's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipality or Luquillo's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant delicicncies may exist that were not identified. However, as 
described in the accompanying schedule of lindings and questioned costs, we identified certain deliciencics in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and signilicant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in i11temal co111rol exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a dcliciency, or a combination of delicicncics, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We considered the dclicicncics described in the 
accompanying schedule of finding and questioned costs as item 2015-001 to be a material weakness. 

A sig11ijica111 deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough 10 merit attention by those charged with governance. We considered the 
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2015-001 to 2015-
003 and 2015-005 to be significant deficiencies. 

Compliance a11d Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipality of Luquillo's financial statements arc free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of linancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that arc required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
(CONTINUED) 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely lo describe the scope of our testing of inlernal control and compliance and the 
results of lhal 1es1ing, and nol lo provide an opinion on 1he effec1iveness of 1he entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an inlegral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

We noted certain mailers that we reported lo management of the Municipality of Luquillo in a separate letter dated 
August 31, 2016. 

deE~l:tI. ~ (7~ 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 
August 31, 2016 

Stamp No. 2728530 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of this report. 

f 1 1 JM1 I L6pez-Vega, CPA, PSC 

C.::rtillcd Puhli<.: Accountants I M:mag.:mcnt Advisor~ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Luquillo 
Luquillo, Puerto Rico 

OMB CIRCUI.;AR A-133 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Municipality or Luquillo's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
Municipality of Luquillos's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. Municipality of Luquillo's 
major federal programs arc identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Municipality of Luquillo's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable 10 financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material cff cct on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
about Municipality of Luquillo's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit docs not provide a legal determination of Municipality of Luquillo's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Municipality of Luquillo complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2015. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 (CONTINUED) 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which arc required to be reported in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which arc described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned cosls as item 2015-006. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these 
matters. 

Municipality of Luquillo's response lo the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Municipality of Luquillo's response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on 
the response. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Municipality of Luquillo is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 10 above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered the Municipality of Luquillo's internal control over compliance with the 
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and lo test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance 
with OMB Circular A· 133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipality of Luquillo's 
internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
docs not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, lo prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than 
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed lo identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist 
that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2015-002 to 2015-005 lo be 
significant deficiencies. 

Municipality of Luquillo's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Municipality of Luquillo's response was 
not subjected lo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion 
on the response. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

OMB CIRCULAR A·l33 (CONTINUED) 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A- 133. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Municipality or Luquillo in a separate letter dated 
August 31, 2016. 

i~n1!P~~ 
August 3 1, 2016 

Stamp No. 272853 1 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of th is report. 

11 IJJ.fl I Upez-Vega, CPA.PSC 

c~·rtificd Public Accou111:1111s I Man;1gcmcnl Advisors 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Fi11a11cial Staleme11ls 

Type of audilor's reporl issued: Qualified for Government-wide FS, 
Unmodified for Fund FS 

lnlernal conlrol over financial reporling: 

Material weakness idenlified? Yes X No 

Significant deficiencies identified not considered being material 
weaknesses? Yes X No 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No 

Federal awards 

Internal Control over major programs: 

Material weakness identified? Yes 

Significant deficiencies identified not considered being material 
weaknesses? Y cs X 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that arc required 
to be reported in accordance with Circular 
A-133, Scclion .510(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

Yes 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

No X 

No 

No X 

14.228 Community Development Block Grants/State's Program and Non· 
Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 

14.871 
84.287 
93.575 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program 
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers 
Child Care and Development Block Grant 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs $ 300,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes No X 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF LUQUILLO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

Tltis deficie11cy i11 i11temal co11trols is comidered a material weak11ess (MW). 

Finding Reference 

Requirement 

Statement of Condition 

Criteria 

Cause or Condition 

Effect or Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

2015-001 

Financial Reporting - Accounting Records (MW) 

During our examination of the Municipality's accounting system, we noted that the 
Municipality's accounting records for Local, State and Federal funds do not provide 
modified-accrual basis financial statements. Also, the accounting system docs not offer 
subsidiaries to produce government-wide financial statements. The computerized 
systems utilized and the manual records maintained by Finance Department's 
personnel do not provide financial information to generate the basic financial 
statements since the beginning balances were not properly presented in the accounting 
systems. 

As a result, the Municipality's hires the professional services of local accounting firms 
to perform the required adjustment entries to convert its accounting records from cash 
basis to modified and then to accrual basis and compile the necessary information as 
required by GAAP and the Law No. 81. 

In addition, prior period adjustments due to corrections of errors in the total amounts of 
$(201, 145) and $(73,385) were made to the beginning fund balances of the General 
Fund and Debt Service Fund, respectively. 

Chapter VIII, Article 8.0 I 0 of State Act Number 81 of August JO, 1991 , states that the 
Municipality should maintain an effective and updated accounting system. 

The Municipality did not establish effective internal control over the transactions 
recorded on its accounting records. Also, the accounting data is not summarized in the 
form of a double-entry General Ledger record. 

The Municipality's accounting system did not provide updated and complete linancial 
information that presents the financial position and the result of operations and the 
change in fund balances. Such information is necessary to take management decisions. 

We recommend the Municipality's Management to implement internal controls and 
procedures in order to maintain a double entry accounting system that contains accurate 
information pertaining to authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, 
liabilities, outlays or expenditures, interfund transactions, etc. 

None 
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Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

Finding Ref ere nee 

Management Response 
and Corrective Action 

2015-001 - Continued 

Beginning January 1, 2015, the Municipality implemcn1ed a new computerized 
accounting system that provides for double-entry accounting, general ledger and 
subsidiaries record keeping. We will review the beginning balances of all our funds' 
accounts lo ensure thal lhe correct dala is entered in the system. Also, we will improve 
our monitoring internal controls so the accounting information is verified each month 
lo ensure lhe leasl number of errors by years' end. 

Implementation Date: 2016-2017 Fiscal Y car 

Responsible Person: Finance Dcparlmcnl Director 
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Finding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

Statement of Condition 

Criteria 

Cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

Management Response 
and Corrective Action 

2015-002 

Community Development Block Grants - State's Program (CFDA No. 14.228); 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development; Pass-through the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico - Office of Commissioner of Municipal Affairs 
(OCAM) 

Allowable Activities • Housekeepers activity 

We performed a housekeeper activity test of ten ( 10) participant files and we did not 
find the Progrnm Approval Form (OCAM-AH0 004A) in all ten ( 10) cases. In addition, 
in seven (7) cases, the Contract of Participation Form (OCAMwAH-005) was not 
approved by the participant or the Federal Programs Department Director, in addi•ion, 
in one (I ) case, the form was not on file. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Section 570.484 states that the Municipality must 
ensure that the Program's funds benefit very low, low- and moderate income persons 
and retain documentation justifying its certification. Also, the Municipality has an 
operational guide that includes all procedures and program requirements for 
housekeeper activities. 

The Municipality's internal controls and procedures failed to ensure that the 
participant's files include all the required documents to comply with Program 
requirements. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations 24, 
Section 570.484 and with the operational guide of the Program. 

We recommend Management follows the procedures established by the Office of the 
Commissioner of Municipal Affairs (OCAM) in the procedures manual, including the 
use of the standard forms included in it. 

None 

We concur with the finding. The Program will take steps to ensure that employees 
maintain program records containing all the information required for compliance with 
federal regulations and in order to ensure application of all of the procedures according 
to the Program's operational guide. 

Implementation Date: 2016-2017 Fiscal Year 

Responsible Person: Federal Programs Department Director 
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Finding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

Statement of Condition 

Criteria 

Cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

Management Response 
and Corrective Action 

2015-003 

Child Care and Development Block Grant (CFDA 93.575); U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services; Pass-through the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Administration for Children and Families 
(A CUD EN) 

Cash Management (Days Elapsed) 

The Municipality's internal control over compliance with the cash management 
requirements of federal program is not effective since it is not minimizing the 
lime elapsed between the receipt and disbursement of funds. In our review, we 
noted that the Municipality made the disbursements between eleven ( 11) to 
fifty-six (56) days after the deposits. 

45 CFR Part 98.67 (a) Lead Agencies shall expend and account for CCDF funds 
in accordance with their own laws and procedures for expending and accounting 
for their own funds. (b) Unless otherwise specified in this part, contracts that 
entail the expenditure of CCDF funds shall comply with the laws and procedures 
generally applicable lo expenditures by the contracting agency of its own funds . 

The Municipality's disbursements procedures failed lo ensure that funds 
requested and received from grantor be disbursed in compliance with the Code 
of Federal Regulations Requirements. The above conditions are the result of 
inadequate cash forecasting procedures because the Municipality has requested 
and received federal funds in excess of its immediate needs. 

The Program is not in compliance with 45 CFR Part 98.67 (a) and (b). 

The Municipality should modify the cash forecasting process by establishing a 
system to forecast the cash needs for the next five days, as established by CCDF 
regulations. Federal funds should only be requested when they arc going to be 
disbursed immediately after receipt, or within five (5) days. 

None 

The Municipality will take adequate measures to streamline the process between 

the Finance Department and the Federal Department, to comply with the 

requirement to disburse the funds received in the established time. 

Implementation Date: During the fiscal year 2016-2017 

Responsible Person: Mrs. Maria Quinonez Ortiz 
Child Care Program Director 
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Finding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

Statement of Condition 

Criteria 

Cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

Management Response 
and Corrective Action 

2015-004 

Child Care and Development Block Grant (CFDA 93.575); U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services; Pass-through the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Administration for Children and Families 
(ACUDEN) 

Reporting 

During our audit procedures, we noted that the Program submitted the annual 
closing report for the program year seventy-two (72) days late as required by the 
recipient agency. 

45 CFR Part 98.67 (c) Fiscal control and accounting procedures shall be 
sufficient to permit ( 1) Preparation of reports required by the Secretary under 
this subpart and under subpart H; and (2) The tracing of funds to a level of 
expenditure adequate to establish that such funds have not been used in violation 
of the provisions of this part. 

The Program does not have effective internal controls to ensure that the required 
documentation and reports are submitted to the pass-through agency in the 
requested time frame. 

The Program is not in compliance with 45 CFR Part 98.67- Fiscal Requirements 
(c)( 1)(2). 

Management should take the necessary steps to ensure that the Program submits 
its financial reports within the time frame required by the state pass-through 
agency. 

None 

The Municipality will take adequate measures to establish effective internal 
controls to submit reports within the set dates. 

Implementation Date: During the 2016-2017 fiscal year 

Responsible Person: Mrs. Marfa Quinonez Ortiz 
Child Care Program Director 
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Finding Reference 

Program 

Requirement 

Statement of Condition 

Criteria 

Cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

Management Response 
and Corrective Action 

2015·005 

Twenty·First Century Community Learning Centers (CFDA No. 84.287); 
U.S. Department of Education; Pass-through Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico-Department of Education 

Reporting 

In our Reporting Test, we review the Achievement Report to test compliance of 
80% assistance of each student 10 the classes and student proficiency in the 
Puerto Rican tests also known in spanish as "Pruebas Puertorriquefias". Our test 
shows that the Program did not maintain a complete set of records available to 
perform our audit procedures to verify accuracy of the information submi1ted. 

Proposal Objective Item 1.2 states that the Program must comply with 80% 
students' participation to the academic skills development. 

Adequate internal controls and proper monitoring procedures do not exist to 
ensure accuracy within the information reported in the Achievement Report and 
supporting documents as required by the Program's regulations and grant 
agreement. 

The Program is not in compliance with the Proposal Objective Item 1.2. 

We recommend the Program establishes internal control procedures to ensure 
the accuracy and completeness of database and correct preparation and 
submission of the Achievement Report. 

None 

Administrative changes will be made to assure that all the report records contain 

all the necessary evidence needed to corroborate the information submiued to 

the Puerto Rico Department of Education. The Puerto Rican Tests are 
administered by the Department and the resuhs of the tests were not available 

until late 2015; for that reason, the measurement of the proficiency in the tests 

was not included with the Achievement Report. 

Implementation Date: During the fiscal year 2016-2017 

Responsible Person: Mrs. Elia Gonzalez Lopez 
21 ,, Century Community Learning Center Program 
Director 
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Finding Reference 2015-006 

Requirement Single Audit Act (NC) 

Statement of Condition The Single Audit Report for the liscal year ended June 30, 20 I 5 was not issued within 
nine (9) months after the end of the audit period. 

Criteria The Single Audit Act of I 984, as amended, requires that the audit report must be 
submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse no later than nine (9) months after the 
end of the audit period. 

Cause of Condition The Municipality's audited financial information was not available as of March 3 I, 
2016. 

Effect of Condition The Municipality could lose federal grants due lo the noncompliance with the Single 
Audit Act requirements. 

Recommendation Procedures should be implemented to ensure that the Municipality complies with the 
established Federal Regulation, as prescribed by OMB Circular A- I 33. 

Questioned Costs None 

Management Response 
And Corrective Action The Municipality 's management will improve internal controls procedures related to 

record keeping and year-adjustments in order to ensure compliance with the March 31 
federal requirement. 

Responsible Person: Finance Department Director 

lmplementmion Date: March 31, 2017 
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Original 
Finding Current Status or Prior Y car Audit Federal Award Findings - Pa rt III Findings 
Number CFDA No. (As rcauircd bv OMO Circula r A-133) 

2014-002 14.228 We ncrformed a housekeener activity test of ten (IO} narticinant files and we did not find the 
Program Annroval Form {OCAM-AH-004A} in all ten (IO} cases. In addition, in one (I} 
case, we did not find the Contract of Particination Form <OCAM-AH-005). 

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for the current year. Finding 
Reference 2015-002. 

201 4-003 14.871 We noted that the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program did not maintain a HAP 
register in the form rcguircd by HUD. The PHA is reguired to maintain a HAP contract 
register or similar record that must urovide informa1ion as to the name and address of the 
family, lhe name and address of the owner, dwelling unit size, lhe beginning date of the lease 
term, lhe monthly rent nayable lo the owner, monthly rent nayable by the family lo the 
owner, and the mon1hly HAP. The record shall also urovide data as to the dale lhe family 
vacates and the number of days the unit is vacant if any. 

Full corrective action was taken. 
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